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CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Ddc 18p — Tu do — Hanh phc
THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Vi Independence — Freedom — Happiness

S&/No,: od8/ MiH- HOT. L0l TP. Hé Chi Minh, ngity A4 _thdng _40 ndm 2021
Ho Chi Minh City, _j4 Crtobpe 2021
TO TRINH
PROPOSAL
Kinh trinh: Hi dbng thanh vién Céng ty

TNHH Phét trién Phit My Hung (“Céng ty PMH”)
To: The Members’ Council of Pliu My Hung Development Corporation
(“PMH?*)
- Cén ¢ Ludt Doanh nghiép, Luat Déu tr va cac van ban hudng dan thi hanh;
Pursuant to Law on Enterprise, Law on Investment and theirs guiding provisions;
- C#ncirDidu 1é ciia Cong ty TNHH Phét trién Phi My Himg duge thong qua ngay 17/01/2017;
Pursuant to the Charter of Phu My Hung Development Corporation dated Jan 17, 2017.

Chu tich Héi ddng thanh vién kinh trinh Hoi déng thanh vién xem xét viée phé duyét cic ndi dung
sau:

The chairperson of the Members’ Council would like to seek the Members' Council’s approval of
the following subjects:

1. N§i dung 1
Subject 1

Théng qua (i) viéc Cong ty TNHH Phat tuen Phi M¥ Hung (“To Chite Phat Hanh” hodc
“Céng Ty”) chao ban, phat hanh va niém yét trai phiéu (“Tr4i Phidw’ ) tal S& giao dich chimg
khoan Dai Bic (“Niém Y&t™) theo phuong 4n phat hanh tréi phiéu quoc t¢ (“Phwong An Phat
Hanh™) nhu dugce dinh kém tai Phu luc 1, va (ii) thong qua todn bg cde ndi dung ctia Phurong
An Phat Hanh.

To approve and accept (i) the offering, issuance and listing of international bonds (the
“Bonds”} on Taipei Exchange (“Listing”) by Phu My Hung Development Corporation (the
“Isswer” or the “"Company’} in accordance with the International Bond Issuance Plan
(“Bond Issuance Plan") attached herelo as Schedule 1, and (ii) to approve all contents of the
Bond Issuance Plan,

2. Noidung?2
Subject 2

Théng qua cdc van d& sau nhim muc dich trién khai thue hién Phuong An Phét Hanh va Niém
Yét Trai Phiéu:

(a) giao dich duge quy dinh trong, va vige Cong Ty ky két, chuyén giao va thyre hién, tit ca
céc thoa thudén, hO‘p dong v cdc tai lidu khdc lién quan dén Trai Phiéu, ma Céng Tyla
mét bén tham gia, bac gom nhung khong gidi han: (1) horp ddng dat mua, (2) hop ddng
Uty théc (Indenture), (3) cac didu khoan va diéu kién cu thé cua Trai Phiéu, (4) ban cong
b6 théng tin so b, (5) ban cdng b théng tin chinh thire, (6) cdc hop ddng, thoa thuén va
tai liéu khéc, va (7) bdt ky vin ban sira d6i, bd sung, ky méi hogc thay thé ndo ciia céc
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théa thufin, hop ddng v tai liu lién quan dén viée phét hanh Trai Phiéu (goi chung 13
*Cde Viin Kién Tral Phiéu™);

(b) viéc Cong Ty chuén bi va ndp hd so démg ky khoan phét hanh trai phiéu quéc t& véi Ngan
hang Nha nuée Vit Nam phu hop véi cée quy dinh phép udt; va

(c) viéc Cong Ty tham vén, chudn bj va  ndp ho so diing ky phat hanh va niém yét Trai Phidu
tai S& glao dich chitng khoén Dai Bic véi Uy ban Chimg khoén Nha nuéc Viét Nam phi
hop voi cée quy dinh phip ludt.

To approve and accept the jfollowing matters for the implementation of the Bond Issuance

Plan and Listing:

(a) the transactions provided under, and the Company’s execution, delivery and performance
of, all agreements, contracts and other documents relating to the Bonds to which the
Company is a party, including but not limited to: (1) purchase agreement, (2) indenture,
(3) specific terms and conditions of the Bonds, (4) preliminary offering circulars, (5)
official offering circulars, (6) other contracts, agreemenis and documents, and (7) any
amendment, supplement, renewal or replacement of confracts, agreements and
documents relating to the issuance of the Bonds (collectively, the “Bond Documents”);

(b) the preparation and submission by the Company of dossiers for registration of
international bond issuance with the State Bank of Vietnam in accordance with the
applicable laws; and

(c) the consultation, preparation and submission by the Company of dossiers for registration
of issuance and listing of the Bonds on Taipei Exchange with the State Securities
Commission of Vietnam in accordance with the applicable laws.

Ngi dung 3
Subject 3

Giao cho nguou dai dién theo phép ludt cia Cong ty PMH ky két toan bd céc tai Héu, vin kién,
thye hién céc tha tuc cAn thiét, bao gbm nhung khéng gidi han cc cong viée néu dudi ddy,
Adé hoan tit cdc N&i dung néi trén. Trong khi thyc hign nhiém vu ndy, ngudi dai dién theo phép
ludt cha Cong ty PMH duge giao lai cho (cdc) cé nhén khéc dé thyre hién céc cdng viée cu the.

(a) 14p va quyét dmh ké hoach sit dung tién thu dugo tir viéc phét hanh Trai Phiéu va phuong
én thanh toan gbc va 1 Trai Phleu

(b) tién hanh cac thit tuc cAn thiét d8 trién khai céc cong vige, ky két cac tai lidu phap 1y c6
lién quan, thye hién cde tha tuc @& hoan thanh Phuong An Phat Hanh, dam bao tuén thd
Nghi quyét HDTV va cdc quy dinh phép luat hién hanh;

() trlen khai thyc hién cdc cong viéc lién quan den viée ding ky phat hanh va niém yét Trai
Phiéu, bao gbm nhung khéng gidi han: (1) quyel dinh thori diém dang ky, nié¢m yét cu thé,
(2) quyet dinh cac hd so, tai liéu lién quan dén viéc ding ky phat hanh bo sung va niém
yét T'réi Phiéy, (3) iam viéc va giai trinh vOi cac co quan O tham quyen v& hd so dang ky
phat hanh va niém yét Trai Phidu, (4) cong b thong tin vé viée phat hénh, déng ky va
niém y&t Trdi Phiéu theo cac quy dinh phép ludt, (5) quyét dinh cac van dé khéc lién quan
dén vige dang ky phat hanh va niém yét Trai Phiéu, va (6) thue hién cac cdng vige va thi
tuc cAn thiét khac nhim phét hanh thanh céng Trai Phiéu va hoan tit viéc dang ky phat
hanh va niém yét T1a1 Phiéu;

(d) thuong luong va quyet dinh cac van dé lién quan den viée phét hanh Trai Phiéu, bao gdm
nhung khong gioi han: théi dlcm phat hanh cu thé, khéi lugng phat hanh thyc té, gia ban
Tréi Phiéu, danh sach nha dfu tur, va cic khoan phi lién quan dén vige phét hanh; va

{e) dam phén, ky két va t§ chire thyc hién Céc Vian Kién Tréi Phiéu va cac tai liéu phap 1y c6
lién quan.
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To assign the legal representative of PMH to execute all necessary documents and procedures

Jor completing and effectuating the Subjects including but not limited to as mentioned below.
During the execution of this task, the legal representative of PMH is entitled to delegate other
individual(s) to perform specific task(s).

(a) prepare and decide the plan on use of proceeds and schedile for payment of principal
and interest of the bonds,

(b) carry out the necessary procedures to implement the works, sign the relevant legal
documents, perform the procedures lo complete the Bond Issuance Plan, ensure
compliance with the MC's Resolutions and applicable laws;

fc) to implement the works relating to the registration for issuance and listing of the Bonds,
including buf not limited to: (1) to decide the specific date for registration and listing, (2)
to decide dossiers, documents relating to the registration for issuance and listing of the
Bonds, (3) to ligise with and explain 1o the competent authorities on the dossiers for
issuance and listing of the Bonds, (4) to disclose information on issuance, registration
and listing of the Bonds in accordance with applicable laws, (5) to decide other matlers
relating to the registration for issuance and listing of the Bonds, and (6) to perform other
necessary works and procedures to successfully issue the Bonds and complete the
registration for issuance and listing of the Bonds,

(d) to negotiate and decide matters relating to the issuance of the Bonds, including but nol
limited to: the specific issuance date, the issuance amount and the price of the Bonds, list
of investors, and fees relating to the issuance; and

(e) to negotiate, execute and perform the Bond Documents and relafed legal documents.

Nguwdi dai dién theo phaip luat Chirc vu Chir ky
Legal Representative Position Signature
Ong/Mr.: Tseng Fan Chih Thng Gidm Pbc/President  cveveeiiiiieeaiiiiann

Kinh trinh Hji ddng thanh vién bidu quyét cdc ndi dung trén vio phitu ly y kién bling viin ban
(nhu dinh kém).

The above subjects are submitted to the Members' Council for approval through the written
opinion form (as enclosed).

Chii tich Hpi dong thanh vién
Chairperson of the Members' Council

@aﬁi/

TING KWANG HUNG
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SCHEDULE 1

INTERNATIONAL BOND ISSUANCE PLAN
OF PHU MY HUNG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

ISSUER

General information of the Issuer:

Name in Vietnamese : Céng Ty TNHH Phat Trién Pha M$ Hung

Name in English : Phu My Hung Development Corporation

Enterprise type :  Limited liability company of two members or more

Address . 10" Floor, Lawrence S. Ting Building, 801 Nguyen
Van Linh, Tan Phu Ward, District 7, Ho Chi Minh
City, Vietnam

Establishment . Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0300604002

initialty issued by Department of Planning and
[nvestment of Ho Chi Minh City on December 16,
2008, as amended for the 4" time on March 20, 2019

Legal representative : Tseng Fan Chih
Position : President
Charter capital : VND 954,000,000,000 (nine hundred fifly-four

billion Vietnamese Dong)

Core business line : Doing business in real-estate, land use rights of
owner, users or leased land (Details: Real estate
business, Lease of infrastructure, and Collecting
tolls (VSIC 6810))

KEY TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE BOND

Form of issuance : International non-convertible bonds (the “Bonds™);

Nature . Non-convertible, guaranteed bonds of the Issuer without
warrant and unsubordinated;



Currency of issuance and
paymeni of principal and
interest of the Bonds

Security for payments of :

the Bonds

Total issuance volume

Bond par value

Issuance price

Quantity of Bonds

Time of issue

Tenor

Maturity date

Interest

Interest payment period
Payment

Tentative investors

Selling/Transfer
Restriction

A pmH-HpTV. U

United States Dollar (USD);

The Issuer’s obligations to pay principal and interests
of the Bonds shall be guaranteed by the bank guarantee
under a guarantee agreement between CTBC BANK
Co., LTD., other participating banks and the [ssuers.

Up to USD 150,000,000 (one hundred fifty million
United States Dollars)(subject to market conditions upon

pricing);

USD 100,000 (One hundred thousand United States
Dollars)/Bond;

100% of par value;

Up to 1,500 (one thousand five hundred) Bonds (subject
to the total issuance volume) ;

Expected in 2021, the exact time for issuance will be

subject to market conditions and approvals from
competent authorities as determined by the President;

5 {five) years;

The end of the Bond’s Tenor;

Decided upon the market situation on the issuance date;
On yearly basis;

On the Final Maturity Date {(Bullet);

Professional investors being eligible to purchase and
invest in the Bonds according to the applicable law of
Taiwan, including but not limited to banks, insurers and

securities firms:

Taiwan selling restriction;

[£%
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The Notes have not been, and shall not be, offered, sold
or re-sold, directly or indirectly to investors other than
"professional investors” as defined under Paragraph 1 of
Article 2-1 of the Taipei Exchange Rules Governing
Management of Foreign Cumency Denominated
International Bonds of the Republic of China ("ROC").
Purchasers of the Notes are not permitted to sell or
otherwise dispose of the Notes except by transfer to a
professional investor,

Offering market :  Taipei Exchange in Taiwan (the "TPEx");

[ssuance method :  The Bonds shall be offered publicly to the investors by
underwriting method in accordance with the relevant
regulations of TPEx and the laws of Taiwan;

Listing :  The Bonds are expected to be listed on the TPEX;

The TPExX is not responsible for the content of these
terms and conditions of the Bonds and no representation
is made by the TPEx as to the accuracy or completeness
of these terms and condition of the Bonds. The TPEx
expressly disclaims any and all liability for any losses
arising from, or as a result of the reliance on, all or part
of the contents of these terms and conditions of the
Bonds. The admission to listing and trading of the Bonds
on the TPEx shall not be taken as an indication of the
merits of the issuer or the Bonds.

Application will be made for the listing of the Bonds on
the TPEx. No assurance can be given as to whether the
Bonds will be, or will remain, listed on the TPEx. If the
Bonds fail to or cease to be listed on the TPEX, certain
investors may not invest in, or continue to hold or invest

in, the Bonds.
Parties involved in the : (a) Bond regisirar: Taiwan Depository & Clearing
issuance Corporation (TDCC);

{(b) Paying agent: CTBC Bank Co., Ltd,;
(c)  Securities service agent: CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.;
(d) Trustee: Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Lid.

(¢) Underwriter; CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. and other
participating banks;

() Legal counsel of Taiwan law matters to 1ssuer:
Lee and Li Attorneys-At-Law;

3
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(g) International counse] to CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.:
Russin & Vecchi;

Other conditions :  Other conditions will be specified in the terms and
conditions of the Bonds and contracts and agreements to
be executed for the issnance of the Bonds pursuant to
this Bond Issuance Plan and decided by the Members'
Council or other persons authorized by the Members'
Council in accordance with applicable laws.

III.  ESTIMATES OF INTERNATIONAL MARKET, ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET
CONDITIONS AND SATISFACTION OF THE MARKET CONDITIONS

TPEx is considered a proactive stock exchange of Asia, connecting investors who are
looking for investment opportunities from Asia's growth with regional companies who are
seeking global sources of funds. The TPEx offers services to customers from all around
the world though its trading system. As a result, the Bonds are expected to be listed and
traded on the TPEx with minimum trading value of USD 100,000 (One Hundred Thousand
United States Dollar) per Bond until the Bonds are no longer listed. The Bonds will meet
the TPEx's requirements in order to be approved for listing.
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PHAT HANH VA NIEM YET TRAI PRIEU RA TH] TRUONG QUOC TE
cUA CONG TY TNHH PHAT TRIEN PHU MY HUNG

TO CHUC PHAT HANH

Théng tin chung cia Té Chire Phat Hanh:

Tén Tiéng Viét ; Cong Ty TNHH Phat Trién Phi My Hung

Tén Tiéng Anh :  Phu My Hung Development Corporation

Loai hinh doanh nghiép :  Cong ty trach nhiém hifu han hai thanh vién tr& 18n
bia chi . LAu 10, Toa nha Lawrence S.Ting, 801 Nguyén Viin

Linh, Khu A — D6 thi méi Nam Thanh phd, Phuimg
Tan Phi, Qudn 7, Thanh phé H6 Chi Minh, Viét
Nam

Thanh lép : Gidy chémg nhén ding ky doanh nghiép sb
0300604002 do S& K4 hoach va PAu tw Thanh phd
H6 Chi Minh cép ngiy 16 théng 12 nam 2008, cp
thay di 1in thit 4 ngay 20 thing 3 niim 2019

Ngudi dai dién theo phép ludt  : Tseng Fan Chih

Chirc vu + Tdng Giam Pbc
Vén didu 18 : 954.000.000.000 VND (chin triim ndim mueoi bon 1y
dong)

Nganh nghé kinh doanh chinh  :  Kinh doanh bit déng san, quyén sir dung dat thude
chil s& hifu, chi sit dung hodc di thué (Chi tiét: Kinh
doanh bét dong san, Cho thué co s& ha ting, va Thu
phi dudng b (VSIC 6810))

PIEU KHOAN VA PIEU KIEN CHINH CUA TRAI PHIEU

Loai hinh trai phiéu . Trai phidu quéc té khdng chuyén déi (“Trai Phiéu™);

Tinh chit . Trai phiéu khdng chuyén adi, khong kém ching quyén,
khéng phai Ia ng thit cap ctia T6 Chirc Phat Hanh;

1
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Déng tién phat hanh va : Do LaM§ (USD);
thaqh toan gbc, I&i Trai
Phigu .

Bdo dam thanh todn Tr4i : Nghia vu thanh toan gbc va I&i ctia Trai Phifu duge bio

phiéu dam thanh todn bing béo lanh ngdn hang theo thoa
thudn/hop ddng bao lanh gitta Ngan hang CTBC Bank
Co., LTD, c4c ngén hang tham gia khéc va T Chirc Phat
Hanh.

Téng Gia tri Trai Phiéu : Tbi da 150.000.000.000 (Mt trim nim muoi triéu D6
phat hanh La My) (duoge xéc dinb pht hop véi didu kién thi trudmg
tai thori diém phat hanh);

Ménh gia Trai Phiéu : 100.000 USD (Mdt tram ngan D6 La M$)/Trai Phiéu;
Gia phat hanh : 100% ménh gia;

Sb lugng Trai Phidu phat : Téi da 1.500 (Mt ngan nam trim) Tréi Phiéu (phy thude
hanh vio tong gia tri Trai Phiéu phat hanh) ;

Thoi gian phat hanh : Dy kién trong nim 2021, thi diém cu thé cho viée phét
hénh s& phu thude vio didu kién thi trrémg va phé duyét
clta co quan nhd nuée cd thim quyén va theo quyét dinh
ciia Téng Giam Péc;

K¥ han ;5 (n&m) ndm;

Ngay dao han . Ngay két thic k¥ han cua Tréi Phidu;

L3 sufit : Phi hop vai 1ai sudt thi tredmg quydt dinh tai thoi diém
phat hanh;

K¥ han tra 1ai :  Hang nam;

Thanh toin : Vao Ngay Ddo Han (Tra | 1dn);

Nha déu tr du kién :  Céc nha diu tu chuyén nghiép cé du didu kign mua va

dau tur Trai Phidu theo quy dinh cia phép luft Dai Loan
hién hanh, bao gom nhung khéng gidi han cdc ngin
hang, cong ty bao hiém va cong ty chimg khoan;



Cac  gi6i  han vé
ban/chuyén nhueng Trai
Phitu

Thi trudng chéo ban

Phuong thirc phat hanh

Niém yét

Céc bén cung cép dich vu
lién quan dén viéc phat
hanh Ttéi Phigu

— (PMH-HBTV.

Theo qui dinh ciia Dai Loan;

Tréi Phidu khong, va s& kh611g dugc chao bin, ban hodc
ban lai, truc tlép hodc gian tiép cho céc nha diu tu khong
phdi 12 “nha dau tu chuyén nghi¢p” theo quy dmh tax
Poan 1 Pidu 2-1 cia Quy tic quan ly trai phiéu quic te
bing ngoai t& trén S& Giao dich chimg khoén Dai Bic
ciia Pai Loan. Ngudi mua Trai Phiéu khéng duge bén
hodic chuyén nhuong dudi céc hinh thire khéc Trai Phidu
ciia ho ngoai trir chuyén nhrong cho céc nha diu
chuyén nghiép.

S& Giao dich chimg khoédn Dai Biic (the "TPEx");

Trdi Phiéu s& dugc chao bén ra cong ching cho céc nha
déu tw theo phwong thirc bao 18nh phi hop véi quy dinh
hién hanh ctia TPEx va phdp luét Dai Loan;

Tréi phiéu dy kién duge niém yel rén TPEx;

TPEx khidng chiu trach nhi¢m vé céc didu khoan va didu
kién clia Trai Phiéu va khéng ¢6 tuyén bd nao clia TPEx
vé& sr chinh x4c hojic day du clia céc didu khoan va dxeu
kién cia T1a1 Phleu TPEx mién trir le trach nhiém d01
véi moi tdn thét phat sinh {ir, hofic két qua tr mét phan
hodc toan b§ céc didu khoan va didu kién cta Trai Phidu.
Viée chip nhén cho niém yet va giao dich Tréi Phiéu trén
TPEx s& khong phéan anh vi thé cua td chitrc phat hanh
hodc Trai Phiéu.

Vige niém yét Tréi Phiéu trén TPEx sé& phai duge ding
ky. Khong co bt ky bio dam nao v& viée Trai Phiéu sg,
hoéc s€ van, duge niém yét trén T PEx. Trudng hop Trél
Phiéu khong dugc hofic hiy niém yet trén TPEX, mbt 56
nha diu te nhét dinh & khong dwgc d4u tw, hodc tlep tuc
néim giir hosdc du tw vao Tréi Phidu.

(a) Dang ky Trai Phidu: Trung tdm Luu ky va By trir
Chimg kho4n Pai Loan (TDCC);
(b} Pai ly thanh toan: Ngéan hang CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.;

(c) Dai Iy chimg khoén: Ngan hang CTBC Bank Co.,
Lid.;

(d) T4 chirc nhén ity théc: Ngdn hang Thwrong mai Taipei
Fubon;

{e) Bdo lanh: Ngan hang CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. Va céc
ngin hang tham gia khéc;
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(f) Tu van phép ludt Pai Loan cho T3 Chirc Phat Hanh:
Lee and Li Attorneys-At-Law;

() Tw vén quéc té cho Ngan hang CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.:
Russin & Vecchi;

Cac diéu kién khéc : Céc diéu kién khéc s& duge quy dinh chi tiét trong céc
didu khoan va diéu kién cia Trai Phiéu va céc hop (Iong,
théa thuéin dugc thue hién cho viée phat hanh Tréi Phxeu
theo Phuong An Phat Hanh Trai Phiéu va theo quyet
dinh cia Hbi dong thanh vién hozic ngudi duge Hai déng
thanh vién tty quyén phii hop véi quy dinh ciia phép lual
hién hanh.

1. DU KIEN THI TRUONG PHAT HANH, PHAN TiCH VE BIEU KIEN THI
TRUONG PHAT HANH VA VIEC PAP UNG DIEU KIEN CUA THI TRUONG
PHAT HANH

TPEx 14 san giao dich ching khoén nang dong cua khu vire Chau A, ket ndi c4c nha diu
tur lrong khu vyue dang c6 nhu ciu tim kiém co hoi dau tu tir vige phat trién ctia Chéu Avéi
cac cong ty trong khu vyre ma dang tim kién cac nguon 1ai trg qugc t&. TPEX cung cip dich
vu cho khich hang trén toan thé gici lhOng qua hé théng giao dich hién tai ciia TPEx. Do
d6, Trai Phidu dy kién duge niém yét va giao dich trén TPEx véi gi4 giao dich tdi thiéu 12
100.000 USD (Mét trim ngén D6 La M§) cho m&i Trai Phiéu cho dén khi Trai Phiéu khéng
con duge nidm yét. P& duge niém yét, Trai Phidu phai dap mg cac yéu cu ciia TPEx.
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Ho Chi Minh City, date 4] _(itoper -S43t

PHIEU LAY Y KIEN BANG VAN BAN
WRITTEN OPINION FORM

S6/No.: ol oMt HDTY, Jerd

I. Théng tin Céng ty/The Company’s Informatiaﬂ
Tén Cong ty: Céng ty TNHH Phat trién Phu My Hung
Gnay chning nhén diéing ky doanh nghlep sb: 0300604002 do Phong Ping ky kinh doanh - S¢
Ké hoach va Piu tw TP.HCM cép ding ky lan déu ngay 16/12/2008 va dang ky thay ddi lin
thir 4 ngay 20/03/2019
Gidly chimg nhn dAu tur s6: 411023000195 do UBND TPHCM cAp chmg nhan 13n din ngay
16/12/2008 va cling nhén thay ddi 1an thir 2 ngdy 09/02/2015
Bia chi tru s& chinh: Lau 10, Tda nha Lawrence S.Ting, sb 801 Nguyén Vin Linh, khu A —
D6 thi méi Nam Thanh phd, phuémg Tén Phu, quéan 7, TPHCM

Name of the Company: Phu My Hung Development Corporation

Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0300604002 issued by Business Registration Office of
HCMC Department of Planning and Investment for the first registration on December 16, 2008
and the 4 amendment registration on March 20, 2019

Investment Certificate No.: 411023000195 issued by the PC of HCMC dated December 16, 2008
Jor the first registration and the 2™ amendment registration dated F: ebruary 09, 2015
Headquarters address: 10" Floor, Lawrence S.Ting Building, 801 Nguyen Van Linh, zone A —
South City New Urban, Tan Phu ward, district 7, HCMC

II. Théng tin thaeh vién Hgi dong thinh vién/The information of the member of the
Members’ Council:
Phu My Hung Asia Holdings Corporation
Gidy chimg nthén thanh 14p sb: 0153759 do Registrar of Companies, Cayman Island cép ngay
27/4/1994
Dia chi tru s& chinh: P.O.Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands
Dai dién theo phap luat: Ong Ting, Kwang Hung
Ty 1& vbn gop: 70%
Phu My Hung Asia Holdings Corporation
Establishment Certificate No.: OF-53759 issued by Registrar of Companies, Cayman Island dated
April 27, 1994
Headguarters: P.O.Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 Wes Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands
Legal representative: My. Ting, Kwang Hung
Capital contribution ratio: 70%

Page I of 4
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Nguwdi dai dién theo tiy quyédn cha thanh vién/The Authorized Representatives of the
member:

1.

Ong: Ting Kwang-Hung:
Mr.: Ting Kwang-Hung;
Ba: Ba Dah-Wen;

Ms.: Ba Dah-Wen;

Ba: Ting Fei Tsong-Ching;
Ms.: Ting Fei Tsong-Ching;
Ba: Tsien Niu Ping;

Ms.. Tsien Niu Ping;

Ba: Chang Gayle Shiming;
Ms.: Chang Gayle Shiming;

6. Ong: Tseng Fan Chih.
My.: Tseng Fan Chih.

L. Muc dich Iy y kién, vAn dé cin Hy ¥ kién va bidu quyét:
Purpose of opinion collection, the subjects on which opinions are sought and voted upon:

D4 bidu quyét théng qua cic noi dung duéi day (chi tiét theo To trinh sé

dur thao nghi quyét gui keém).

In order to pass the following subjects (the details as the Proposal No

draft of resolution as enclosed).

b/ HDTY. S0 5 VA
e O T Le9y and the

Subject No. 3

Ngwéi duge uy Néi Biéu quyéy/Votes
3 i
quyen/ b Khéng tin Khong c6 ¥ | ¥ lién
Authorized dung/Subject Tan thanh Oflg n 0!.123 coy “
R fati Approved thanh/ kién/ khde/
cpresentative op Disapproved| Abstained | Others
N6t dung 1 \/
. ) Subject No. 1
Ong Ting Kwang- N6i dung 2
Hung Subject No. 2 /
Mr. Ting Kwang-Hung “y o
N&i dung 3

Ba Ba Dah-Wen
Ms. Ba Dah-Wen

Noi dung |
Subject No. |

Noi dung 2
Subject No, 2

| S~ =

Néi dung 3
Subject No. 3

.
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Subject No. 3

Noi dung 1 \
B Ting Fei Tsong- | Swbject No. I
Ching Nt dung 2
Ms. Ting Fei Tsong- Subject No. 2
Ching Ngi dung 3
Subject No. 3
Noi dung 1
Subject No. 1
Ba Tsien Niu Ping Noi dung 2
Ms. Tsien Niu Ping Subject No. 2
Néi dung 3

Ndi dung 1

Ba Chang Gayle Subject No. 1
Shiming Ngi dung 2
Ms, Chang Gayle Subject No. 2
Shiming Nb6i dung 3
Subject No. 3
Noi dung 1
Subject No. 1
611;; Tseng Fan NGi dung 2
Chil Subject No. 2
M. Tseng Fan Chih :
Ni dung 3

Subject No. 3

Luu § vé cdch thive bidu quyét:

Note the vaa‘ing methods:

-
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

- Dénh ddu (X) hoic (v) vao 01 trong 04 6: Téan thanh hodc Khéng tén thanh hodc Khéng
¢6 ¥ kién; hotic ¢6 Y kién khéc;
- Please mark (X) or (V) in 01 of 04 the box corresponding to “dpproved”, “Disapproved”,

“Abstained”; or having “Others™ toward the voling subjects.

IV. Théi han givi Phiéu Wy y kién/Deadline Jor sending the written opinion forms:

Thanh vién HDTV phai giti phidu 14y ¥ kién béng vin ban nay dén Cong ty TNHH Phat trién
Phi My Hung theo dija chi néu trén chdm nhét vao ngay 01 ] Qudd bing cach giri
truc tlep, thur, fax hodc email.

Page 3 of 4
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Phiéu 14y kién bing van bin dugc xem la giri dén Cong ty vao (i) ngay gri trong trudng hop
giao tdn tay vé cé chit ky cita ngudi nhan; hofc (i) ngay bén giri nhan duoe théng béo chuyén
fax/email thanh cong trong trudng hop g bing fax/email; hoic (iii) ngdy thit 3 (d8i v&i thanh
vién trong nudée) hodie ngay thir 10 (461 véi thanh vién nuéc ngoai), ké tir ngay ké tir ngay
cubi cling phai giri phiéu ldy ¥ kién bing van ban va c6 déng diu buu dién trong trrdmg hop
gl bing thu chuyén phat nhanh.

The members of the MC shall send this written opinion form to Phu My Hung Development
Corporation at the above address no later than by personal delivery, mail,
Jax or email.

The written opinion form shall be deem sent to the Company on (i) the sending date if the written
opinion form is given directly and bear the signature of the recipient; or (i) the day on which the
sender receives a notice of successful fax/email if the written opinion form is sent by fax/email;
or (tii) on the third day (for domestic members) or the tenth day (for foreign members) from the
deadline for sending the written opinion form and sealed by the post office if the written opinion
Jorm is sent by express mail.

Cha tich Hpi ddng thanh vién
Cong ty TNHH Phit trién Phit My Hung
Chairperson of the Members’ Council of
Phu My Hung Development Corporation

D58 f—
Ong/Mr. TING KWANG-HUNG

Ngwi dai dién theo Gy quyén cita thanh vién
Authorized Representatives of the member

Ong TING KWANG-HUNG BA BA DAH-WEN
Mr. TING KWANG-HUNG Ms. BA DAH-WEN
o =
Ba TING FEI TSONG-CHING Ba TSIEN NIU PING
Ms. TING FEI TSONG-CHING Ms. TSIEN NIU PING
- " v /() v
bopritagyctoy A=
]
v
Ba CHANG GAYLE SHIMING Ong TSENG FAN CHIH
Ms. CHANG GAYLE SHIMING Mr. TSENG FAN CHIH

RLEL
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Ho Chi Minh City, ber 282}

PHIEU LAY ¥ KIEN BANG VAN BAN
WRITTEN OPINION FORM

SB/No.: .9/t H)1V. 2052

1. Thong tin Cong ty/The Company’s Information:
Tén Cong ty: Cong ty TNHH Phat trién Phii M§ Hung
Gifly ching nhén ding ky doanh nghiép sh: 0300604002 do Phong Dang ky kinh doanh - S
K& hoach va DAu tu TP, HCM cép ding ky l4n diu ngay 16/12/2008 va déng ky thay ddi 1an
thir 4 ngay 20/03/2019
Gidy cltng nhén ddu tu sé: 411023000195 do UBND TPHCM cAp chimg nhan An dau ngay
16/12/2008 va ching nhan thay dbi 14n thit 2 ngay 09/02/2015
Dia chi try s& chinh: LAu 10, Toa nha Lawrence 8.Ting, s& 801 Nguyén Van Linh, khu A -
D6 thi méi Nam Thanh phé, phudmg Tén Phi, quén 7, TPHCM

Name of the Company: Phu My Hung Development Corporation

Enterprise Registration Certificate No.: 0300604002 issued by Business Registration Qffice
of HCMC Department of Planning and Investment for first registration on December 16,
2008, and the 4™ amendment registration on March 20, 2019

Investment Certificate No.: 411023000195 issued by the PC of HCM dated December 16,
2008 for the firsi registration and the 2 amendment registration dated February 09, 2015
Headqguarters address: 10" Floor, Lawrence S.Ting Building, 801 Nguyen Van Linh, zone
A ~ South City New Urban, Tan Phu ward, distriet 7, HCMC

II. Théng tin thanh vién Hdi dbng thanh viéwThe information of the member of the
Members’ Council:
Cdng ty TNHH M4t thanh vién Phat trién Cong nghidp Tan Thudn
Gidy chimg nhén dang ky doanh nghiép s6: 0301052146 do Phong Ping ky kinh doanh - S¢
K& hoach va Piu tu TPHCM cdp dang ky 1an dau ngdy 21/9/2010
Bia chi try s& chinh: 1489 Nguy&n Van Linh, Phuong Tén Phong, Quén 7, TPHCM
Pai dién theo phap luat: Ong Lam Hoai Anh
Ty 18 vbn gdp: 30%

Tan Thuan Indusirial Promotion Company Limited

Enterprise Registration Certificate No.: 0301 052146 issued by Business Registration Office
of DPI of HCMC for the initial time dated September 21, 2010

Headgquarters address: 1489 Nguyen Van Linh, Tan Phong Ward, District 7, HCMC

Legul representative: Mr. Lam Hoai Anh

Capital contribution ratio: 30%

Page 1 of3
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Negwdi dai dién theo iy quyén cita thanh vién/The Authorized Representative of the
member:

Ong Vo Hong Tai

Mr: Vo Hong Tai

IT1. Muc dich 1y ¥ kién, vAn aé cin Iy ¥ kién va bidu quyét:

Purpose of opinion collection, the subjects on which opinions are sought and voted upon:
D4 biéu quyét théng qua c4c ndi dung dudi day (chi tiét theo Té trinh sé L 20
va du thao nghj quyét giri kém).

In order to pass the following subjects (the details as the Proposal No. @Mﬂgg
and the drajt of resolution as enclosed).

Ngudi duge uy Biéu quyét/Votes
A n I a . Y A
gquyen/ . e Khong tin Khéngcdy | Y kién
Authorized Noi 'I:n :‘l:f;:;]l thanh/ Kién/ khac/
Representative dung/Subject PP Disapproved| Abstained | Others
Noi dung 1
Subject No. |
Ong Vs Héng Tai N6i dung 2
Mr. Vo Hong Tai | Subject No. 2
N6i dung 3
Subject No. 3
Y Kibn JhAC/ OHHETS: 1vvivervrnceneereciseesieraenrerisansrssrersssssnasssasssnsrnns rerrecaresatetrrrsens

o Lirn y vé cich thirc biéu quyét:
Note the voting methods:
- Péanh du (X) hosic () vao 01 trong 04 &: Tén thanh hodc Khéng tdn thanh hoic Khong
¢6 v kién hoic ¢4 Y kién khéc;
- Please mark (X} or (V) in 01 of 04 the box corresponding to “Approved”, “Disapproved”,
“Abstained” or "Others” toward the voting subjects.

1V. Thoi han giti phiéu ldy y kién/Deadline for sending the written opinion forms:

Thanh vién HDTV phai giri phidu 1y y kién bing van ban nay dén Céng ty TNHH Phat trién
Phit M§ Hung theo dia chi néu trén trén chim nhét vao ngay _ 09 [ ‘/,\9 0.0 bing cich
g true tiép, thu, fax hodc email.

Phiéu 14y kién béng vin ban dwgc xem |4 giri dén Cang ty vao (i) ngdy gui trong trixdng hop
giao tan tay va cb chit ky cia ngudi nhédn; hodc (ii) ngay bén gui nhén dugc thdng bdo
chuyén fax/email thanh céng trong trwdng hop giri biing fax/email; ho#ic (iii) ngdy tha 3 (d6i

Page 2of 3
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véi thanh vién trong nuéc) hodc ngéy thir 10 (dbi véi thanh vién nude ngoai), ké tir ngay ké
tlr ngay cubi cing ph&i gii phiéu 14y ¥ kién bing vin ban va c6 déng du buu dién trong
trudng hop giri bing thu chuyén phat nhanh.

The members of the MC shall send this written opinion form to Phu My Hung Development
Corporation at the above address no later than by personal

delivery, mail, fax or email.

The written opinion form shall be deem sent to the Company on (i) the sending date if the
written opinion form is given directly and bear the signature of the recipient; or (if) the day
on which the sender receives a notice of successful fax/email if the writlen opinion Jorm is
sent by fux/email; or (iii) on the third day (for domestic members) or the ienth day (for
foreign members) from the deadline for sending the wrillen opinion form and sealed by the
post office if the written opinion form is sent by express mail.

Ngudi dai dién theo 1y quyén ciia thanh vién Chi tich Hdi ddng thanh vién
Authorized Representatives of the member Cong ty TNHH Phit trién Phi My Hung

Chairperson of the Members’ Council of
Phu My Hung Development Corporation

Ong Vo Hong Tai Ong/Mr. TING KWANG-HUNG
Mr. Vo Hong Tai

Page3 of 3
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries

Corporate Information

Investment Licence No.

Investment Certificate No.

Enterprise Registration
Certificate No.

Members? Council

602/GP 19 May 1993

411023000195 9 February 2015

The Company’s Investment Licence has been amended several
times, the most recent of which is by Investment Licence no.
602/GPDCS8 dated 29 October 2004, The investment licence is
issued by the Ministry of Planning and Investment and is valid for
50 years.

Investment Certificate no. 411023000195 was amended and issued
on 9 February 2015 by the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh
City and is valid for 50 years from the date of the initial Investment
Licence,

Under one of the amended investment licence no. 602/GPDC2
dated 22 August 1997, the Company was approved by the Ministry
of Planning and Investment to establish a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Saigon South International School at Nguyen Van Linh
Parkway, Tan Phong Ward, District 7, Ho Chi Minh City.

Under the Decision no. 2423/QD-UBND issued on 6 June 2008,
the Company was approved by the People’s Committee of Ho Chi
Minh City to establish a wholly-owned subsidiary, Lawrence
S.Ting Secondary and High School at Parcel P1, Site A, Southern
New Urban Area, Tan Phong Ward, District 7, Ho Chi Minh City.

0300604002 13 June 2016

The Company’s Enterprise Registration Certificate has been
amended several times, the most recent of which is by Enterprise
Registeation Certificate no. 0300604002 dated 20 March 2019.
The Enterprise Registration Certificate and its updates were issued
by the Planning and Investment Department of Ho Chi Minh City.

Mr Ting Kwang Hung Chairman
Ms Ba Dah Wen Member
Ms Ting Fei Tsong-Ching Member
Ms Tsien Niu Ping Member
Ms Chang Gayle Shiming Member
Mr Tseng Fan Chih Member
Mr Vu Xuan Duc Member



Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Corporate Information (continued)

Board of Directors

Registered Office

Auditor

Ms Ba Dah Wen Managing Director

Mr Tseng Fan Chih President

Mr Vu Xuan Duc Vice President

Mr Truong Quoc Hung Vice President

Mr Pham Van Hao Nhien Vice President

Mr Nguyen Van Duc Vice President

Ms Hsu Shu Min Vice President

(until 31 October 2020)

Ms. Li Chian Wei Vice President

(from 1 January 2020)

10 Floor Lawrence S.Ting Building
801 Nguyen Van Linh Parkway

Tan Phu Ward

Distriet 7, Ho Chi Minh City
Vietnam

KPMG Liumnited
Vietnam



Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Statement of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Phu My Hung Development Corporation (“the Company™) presents this
statement and the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries {collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting
System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting.  In
the opinion of the Board of Directors:

(a) the separate and consolidated financial statements set out on pages 6 to 69 give a true and fair
view of the unconsolidated and consolidated financial positions of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of their unconsolidated and consolidated results of
operations and their unconsolidated and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for
enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting; and

(b) atthe date of this statement, there are no reasons to believe that the Group and the Company
will not be able to pay their debts as and when they fall due,

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised the accompanying financial
statements for issue.

President

Ho Chi Minh City, 26 March 2021



KPMG Limited Branch

10™ Floor, Sun Wah Tower

115 Nguyen Hue Street, Ben Nghe Ward
District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
+84 (28) 3821 9266 | kpmg.com.vn

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Investors
Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying separate and consolidated financial
statements of Phu My Hung Development Corporation (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries {together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the separate
and consolidated balance sheets as at 31 December 2020, the separate and
consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended and
the explanatory notes thereto which were authorised for issue by the Company’s
Board of Directors on 26 March 2021, as set out on pages 6 to 69.

Management’s Responsibility

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and
the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting, and for
such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of separate and consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate and consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Vielnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the separate and consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.  An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonablenass of accounting eslimates made by the Company's Board of
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG Lim1ed Branch, a branch of KPHG Limited, a Vislnamese one mefnbar
Imiled liabikty company and s momber fim of the KPMG giobal arganization of
independent member fums afiviated with KPMG Inlemational Limited, a private
English company mited by guarantee. All ights raseived,




Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion, the separate and consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view, in all material respects, of the unconsolidated and consolidated
financlal positions of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2020
and of their unconsclidated and consclidated results of operations and their
unconsolidated and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant stalutory requirements
applicable to financial reporting.

KPMG Limited’s Branch in Ho Chi Minh City
Vielnam

No.: 20-G1-01027-21-1

: ,_Q

Auvarin Phor

ng Auditor Regisiration Practlicing Auditer Registration
Certificate No. 0414-2018-007-1 Certificate No, 2252-2018-007-1
Deputy General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, 26 March 2021




Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Balance sheets as at 31 December 2020

Form B 01 - DN/HN
(Isswed under Circular No, 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Group Company
Code Note 31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VND million VND million VND million VND million

ASSETS

Current assets

(100 = 110 + 120 + 130 + 140 + 150} 100 24,678,778 21,989,076 12,569,155 11,642,276

Cash and cash equivalenis 110 5 6,480,353 5,355,258 3,034,680 3,073,728
Cash 111 641,442 062,143 294,381 592,836
Cash equivalents 112 5,838,911 4,393,115 2,740,299 2,480,892

Short-term financial investments 120 854,519 300,371 220,651 81,821
Held-to-maturity investments 123 6(a) 354,519 300,371 220,651 81,821

Accounts receivable — short-term 130 3,446,493 2,658,035 3,844,388 2,828,812
Accounts receivable
from customers 131 7 1,021,194 687,982 406,114 327,794
Prepayments to suppliers 132 609,017 692,849 237,145 249,456
Loans receivable — short-term 135 8 968,298 392,385 - -
Other receivables 136 9(a) 868,212 905,308 3,220,691 2,270,876
Allowance for doubtful debts 137 7 (20,228) (20,489) (19,062) (19,314)

Inventories 140 10 13,704,757 13,520,387 5,442,107 5,639,011
Inventories 141 14,127,322 13,903,750 5,824,375 6,022,374
Allowance for inventories 149 (422,565) (383,363) (382,268) (383,363)

Other current asseis 150 192,656 155,025 26,829 18,904
Short-term prepaid expenses 151 44,056 60,389 14,506 11,346
Deductible value added tax 152 19(b) 94,608 33,747 6,868 -
Taxes receivable from
State Treasury 153 19(b) 53,992 60,889 5,455 7,558

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Balance sheets as at 31 December 2020 (continued)

Long-term assets (200 = 210 +
220 + 230 + 240 + 250 + 260)

Accounts receivable — long-term
Long-term trade receivables
Long-term Joan receivables
Other long-term receivables

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Cost
Accumiilated depreciation
Intangible fixed assets
Cost
Accumnlated cmortisation

Investment properties
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Long-term work in progress
Construction in progress

Long-term financial investments
Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in a jointly
controlled entity
Equity investments in other
entities
Allowance for diminution in
the value of long-term financial
investments

Other long-term assets
Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets

TOTAL ASSETS
(270 = 100 + 200)

200

210
211
215
216

220
221
222
223
227
228
229

230
231
232

240
242

250
251

252

253

254
260

261
262

270

8
9(b)

11

12

13

14

6(b)
6(b)

6(b)

6(b)

is
16(a)

Group

Code Note 31/12/2020
VYND million VND million VND million VND million

17172020

Forin B 01 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Company

31/12/2020

1/1/2020

7,735,466 7,503,760 11,409,052 9,757,200
504,445 82,305 1,973,712 38,835
6,219 8,769 6,219 8,769
418,545 - - -
79,681 73,536 1,967,493 30,066
882,603 871,779 368,866 381,633
869,785 855,046 361,464 372,012
1,635,239 1,534,309 690,072 664,929
(765,454) {679,263) (328,608) (292,917}
12,818 16,733 7402 9,621
48,266 46,550 28,742 28,269
(35,448) (29,817) (21,340) (18,648}
4,972,056 4,969,524 4,972,056 4,969,524
6,741,572 6,510,345 6,741,572 6,510,345
(1,769,516) (1,540,821) (1,769,516) (1,540,821)
160,142 69,993 120,510 49,320
160,142 69,993 120,510 49,320
419,032 501,929 3,805,015 4,146,074
- - 3,482,124 3,801,100
361,076 421,800 373,886 373,886
160,496 144,380 168,813 152,607
(102,540) (64,251) (219,308) (181,519)
797,188 1,008,170 168,893 171,814
17,305 18,315 5,937 3,426
779,883 989,855 162,956 168,388
32,414,244 29,492,776 23,978,207 21,399,476

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Balance sheets as at 31 December 2020 (continued)

(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No, 202/2014/TT-BTC

RESOURCES

LIABILITIES (300 =310 + 330) 300

Current liabilities 310
Accounts payable to suppliers 311
Advances from customers 312
Taxes and others payable to
State Treasury 313
Payables to employees 314
Accrued expenses 315
Unearned revenue 318
Other payables - short-term 319
Short-term borrowings 320
Bonus and welfare fund 322

Long-term borrowings and

liabilities 330
Other payables — long-term 337
Long-term borrowings and
bonds 338
Deferred tax liabilities 341
Provision for severance allowance 342
Provisions 342

17
18

19(a)
20

21
22(a)

22(b)
16(a)
23
24

Form B 01 - DN/HN

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Group
Code Note 31/12/2020

VND million VND million VND million VND million

18,411,922

10,179,490
1,055,635
3,349,616

106,886
50,506
379,122
619,602
2,136,499
2,481,066
558

8,232,432
189,854

7,022,046
470,058
39,618
510,856

1/1/2020

17,073,939

13,940,154
908,003
4,986,272

691,428
60,476
743,173
570,550
2,829,496
3,150,198
558

3,133,785
174,871

2,071,278
337,129
36,923
513,584

Company

31/12/2020

11,514,762

4,679,424
412,342
688,351

88,819
44,646
199,008
234,539
1,164,879
1,846,840

6,835,338
189,907

6,086,328

39,018
519,485

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statenents

1/1/2020

8,632,503

6,298,137
367,523
889,126

110,880
55,942
381,309
230,570
2,218,357
2,044,430

2,334,366
174,925

1,596,263

36,923
526,255
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Balance sheets as at 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 01 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Group Company
Code Note 31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020

VND nillion VND million VND million YND million

EQUITY (400 = 410) 400 14,002,322 12,418,837 12,463,445 12,766,973
Owners’ equity 410 25 14,002,322 12,418,837 12,463,445 12,766,973
Contributed capital 411 26 954,000 954,000 954,000 054,000
Other reserve 414 25 9,585 9,585 - -
Financial reserve 418 28 36,859 36,359 36,859 36,859
Retained profits 421 25 11,897,571 10,496,062 11,472,586 11,776,114
- Retained profits brought
Jorvard 421a 8,973,401 7,316,819 10,253,453 10,780,708
- Profit for the curvent year 4216 2,924,170 3,179,243 1,219,133 995,406
Non-controlling interests 429 25 1,104,307 922,331 - -
TOTAL RESOURCES
(440 = 300 + 400) 440 32,414,244 29,492,776 23,978,207 21,399,476
26 March 2021
Prepared by: _Approved by:

0 ,.’7 =
muuj_/ g ,/f_f--; i \'tw
o =g
/ i( o s T
e . A\ T ,&,&\\\\% :
Tran Thi My Lien b o \,\\\\\\ ng/A Chih
Vice Financial Controller \\'f v Priisfdent

RN

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Statements of income for the year ended 31 December 2020

Form B 02 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Group Company
Code Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million VND million VND million VND million

Revenue from sales of goods 1 39 0330565 10,544,460 3,305,490 2,922,085
and provision of services

Revenue deductions 02 30 99,749 36,197 29,987 935
Net revenue (10 = 01 - 02) 10 30 9,230,816 10,508,263 3,275,503 2,921,150
Cost of sales 11 31 4,165,565 5,130,072 1,627,435 1,107,133
Gross profit (20 = 10 - 11) 20 5,065,251 5,378,191 1,648,068 1,814,017
Financial income 21 32 208,212 189,933 651,392 240,665
Financial expenses 22 33 303,894 257,677 351,499 195,702
It which: Interest expense 23 261,504 195,806 249,768 162,580
Share of (loss)/profit in
jointly controlled entity 24 {17,288) 45,432 - -
Selling expenses 25 198,624 282,859 97,253 103,549
General and administration
expenses 26 812,781 791,604 478,869 547,567
Net operating profit {30 =20 +
(21 -22) + 24 - (25 + 26)} 30 3,940,876 4,281,416 1,371,839 1,207,864
Other income 31 34 88,927 48,322 54,270 23,305
Other expenses 32 35 24,570 19,181 9,991 5,181
Results of other activities
(40 = 31-32) 40 64,357 29,141 44,279 18,124
Accounting profit before tax
(50 = 30 + 40) 50 4,005,233 4,310,557 1,416,118 1,225,988
Income tax expense — current 51 36 501,220 592,720 191,553 222,546
Income tax expense — deferred 52 36 209,883 239,236 5,432 8,036
Net profit after tax 60 3204130 3478601 1219133 995406

(60 =50 - 51 - 52)

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements




Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Statements of income for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 02 - DN/HN
(Issied under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Group Company
Code Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

VND million VND million YND million VND million

Net profit after tax 60 3,294,130 3,478,601 1,219,133 995,406
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 61 25 2,924,161 3,148,847 - -

Non-controlling interests a2 25 369,969 329,754 - -

26 March 2021

Prepared by: Approved by:
AT

/. i ;
(w,t(, & 1_:(.'\[;““““5"“ "“,}.U fa

Tran Thi My Lien . n Chih
Vice Financial Controller t Wdsident
Zarn s

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020 (Indirect method)

Form B 03 - DN/HN
(Issued wnder Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Group Company
Code 2020 2019 2020 2019

VYND million VND million VND million VND million

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Accounting profit before tax 01 4,005,233 4,310,557 1,416,118 1,225,988
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 02 326,628 260,374 272,972 210,134
Allowances and provisions 03 88,077 48,430 43,748 37,843

Exchange losses/(gains) arising from
revaluation of monetary items

denominated in foreign currency 04 21,896 (3,447) 21,896 (4,060)
Losses/(gains) on disposals of fixed
assets and investment properties 05 586 (1,901) 486 (1,576)
Share of loss/(profit} of equity
accounted investee 05 17,288 (45,432) - -
Interest income as (262,816) (178,037 (219,502)  (200,174)
Dividends 05 - - (398,514) (29,818)
Profits from other investing activities 05 - (2,570) - (2,570)
Interest expense 06 261,504 195,806 249,768 162,580
Operating profit before changes in 08 4458396 4,583,780  1,386972 1,308,347
working capital
Change in receivables 09 (366,333) 189,166 (110,491) 2,231,196
Change in inventories 10 686,474 791,708 215,885 (209,533)
Change in payables and other liabilities 11 (1,800,189) 585,938 (351,536) 47,436
Change in prepaid expenses 12 19,278 10,432 (5.671) 1,573

2,997,626 6,161,024 1,135,159 3,469,019

Interest paid 14 (364,885) (414,446) (274,351) (182,663)
Income tax paid 15 (722,148) (492,567 (177,732)  (363,245)
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 1,910,593 5,254,011 683,076 2,923,111

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020 (Indirect method - continued)

Form B 03 - DN/HN

(Issied under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Code

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

VYND million VND million VND million VND million

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for additions to fixed assets

and other long-term assets 21
Proceeds from disposals of fixed

assets, investment properties other

long-term assets 22
Payments for granting loans 23
Receipts from collecting loans 24
Payments for investments in

other entities 25
Payments for deposits of investments

in other entity 25
Collections on investments in other

entities 26
Receipt of interest and dividends 27

Change in held-to-maturity investments
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of

cash acquired (Note 4)

Net cash flow in transactions with
non-controlling interests

Net cash flows from investing activities 30

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings and bonds 33
Payments to seltle loan principals 34
Payment of dividends 36
Capital contribution to a subsidiary by
non-controlting interests

Net cash flows from financing activities 40

(432,224)  (984,901)  (333,983)  (949,138)
234 11,559 234 11,194
(1,035258)  (388385) (5,073,000)  (29,500)
40,800 - 2,281,921 -
(16,116)  (44,082) (16,206) (1,816,810)
(251,000) - - .
; \ 318976 730,077
180,269 135,583 564,120 181,738
(569,665)  (43,369)  (167,730) 2,615
(31,986) (1,043,910) . .
(5) 100,308 - -
(2,114951) (2,257,197) (2,425,668) (1,869,324)
0,628,080 5348049 7,945,526 3,334,980
(5362,024) (4,865,065) (3,673,833) (1,980,280)
(2,951,081) (1,860,001)  (2,596,001) (1,860,001)
- 8,025 - .
1,314,984  (1,368,992) 1,675,692  (505,301)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020 (Indirect method - continued)

Form B (3 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Cireular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance}

Group Company
Code 2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million VND million VND million VND million

Net cash flows during the year
(50 = 20 + 30 + 40) 50 1,110,626 1,627,822 (66,900) 547,986

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ., 5315757  3.687.033 3061054  2.513.966
of the year #3195 80/, y0ol, o ldy

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on
cash and cash equivalents 61 (1,048) 2 (1,048) 2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 70 6.425.335

425, 5,315,757 2,994,006 3,061,954

the year (70 = 50 + 60 + 61) (Note 5)

26 March 2021

Prepared by: pproved by
2/ HG 1Y W’
i

oml}-/ FH‘“ 'EmEN i/‘(

i
Tran Thi My Lien igAan Chih
Vice Financial Controlfer : resident

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Form B 09 - DN/JHN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements.

Reporting entity

Ownership structure

Phu My Hung Development Corporation (“the Company”} is a limited kability company incorporated
in Vietnam. The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred as “the Group”) and the Group's
interest in a jointly controlled entity.

Principals activities

The principal activities of the Company are to inanage a parkway and conduct various infrastructure
development projects on 600 hectares of land in the Saigon South area, to provide educational
services, to operate an amusement park and to lease out space and other related commercial activities.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity are stated in Note 1(d).

Normal operating cycle

The normal operating cycle of the Company is generally from 2 to 3 years.

Group structure

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had 19 subsidiaries and ! jointly controlled entity (1/1/2020: 18
subsidiaries and 1 jointly controlled entity), as follows:

Percentage of

Company Principal activities Nate cconomics interest
31/12/2020  1/1/2020
Direct subsidiaries
Saigon South International Providing educational services to 1(d)(i) 100% 100%
School ("SSIS™) pupils from the age of kindergarten to
grade twelve,
Lawrence S.Ting Providing secondary, high school and L)1) 100% 100%
Secondary and High multi-grade high school educational
School (“LSTS") services.
Phu The An Providing management consuiting 100% 100%
Development Company  services and building residential house.
Limited (“PTA™)
Phu The Vuong Providing management consulling 100% 100%

Development Company
Limited (“PTV")

services and architecture service.

15




Phu My Hung Development Coxporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN

(Isstied under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Company

Saigon South Residences
Joint Stock Company
(lISSR’,)

Sannam-Hoa Binh
Investinent Joint Stock
Company ("SNHB”)

Phu Hung Thai
Development Joint Stock
Company (“PHT")

Hung Thai Technology
Company Limited
(“HTTC”)

Indirect subsidiaries

Vietinbank Trade-Union
Investment Joint Stock
Company (“VTU")

Phu Hung Thinh
Pevelopment Company
Limited (“PHTH")

Hung Khang
Development Company
Limited ("HK")

Hung Khai Development
Company Limited
(IiHKI")

Hung Nghiep
Development Company
Limited ("HN"}

Phu Hung Khang
Development Company
Limited ("PHK")

Gia Viet Land Investment
Company Limited (“GV"™)

Principal activities

Building residendial units for sale and
for lease and providing real estate
management service.

Constructing commercial building,
producing and storing fruil providing,
hotel, restaurant and catering services,
house and office leasing services,
providing services for real estate and
processing foods.

Building house for sale and for lease,
constructing commercial building and
offices for sales and for lease,
providing services for real estale and
supporting services,

Providing programming, software
implementation and data processing
services.

Conslructing real estate business,
providing restaurant and catering
service, house hold cleaning and other
works and mainicnance of landscape.

Providing real estate management
services.

Providing management consulting
services.

Providing architectural services and
related technical services and
consulting management service.

Constructing high-rise building, civil
technical projects and providing
management consulling services.

Constructing, developing and operaling
commercial activities in ecotourisim
urban area.

Building residential units for sale,

Note

1))

1{d)(iv)

Percentage of
economics interest

31/12/2020 1/1/2020
100% 100%
99.9985%  99.9985%
50% 50%
66.67% 606.67%
99.84% 99.84%
66.67% 66.67%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
99.09926% 99.99840%

16
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Percentage of

o . N, Note .
Company Principal activities economics interest
31/12/2020 1/1/2020
Vietnam Lotus Industrial  Consiructing real estate business, 1(d}(iv} 99.926% 99.840%
and Commercial providing restaurant and catering
Investment Joint Stock service, house hold cleaning and other
Company ("VLI") works and maintenance of landscape.
Song Hong Group Trading real cstate and land use rights, 1(d)(v} 99.99% 99.99%
Joint Stock Company construcling civil technical projects and
(“SHG™ site levelling.
VRC Saigon Real Estate  Trading real estate and land use rights. Hd)(iv)  99.99963% 99.99920%
Joint Stock Company
(IIVRCH)
Hong Thinh Trading and  Trading real estate and land use rights, 1(d)(vi) 90.00% -
Construction Joint Stock  constructing civil technical projects and
Company ("HT") site levelling.
Jointly controlied entity
Saigon Exhibition and Leasing premises and organising 40% 40%

Convention Joinl
Venture Company Lid
{"SECC™)

exhibitions, conferences, fairs, and
providing services to organise
exhibitions, conferences, fairs and lease
advertisement equipment.

Pursuant to amended Investment Licence no. 602/GPDC2 dated 22 August 1997, the Company was
approved to establish an international school. Accordingly, Saigon South International School
(“SSIS”) was established following the Approval Letter no. 6972/QHQT dated 18 August 1998 issued
by the Ministry of Education and Training in Vietnam. Its principal activity is to provide educational
services to pupils from the age of kindergarten to grade twelve.

SSIS is allowed to operate for 50 years from the date of the Company’s initial investment licence
dated 19 May 1993. The Company’s Board of Management through a board resolution dated 22
February 2000 determined the total investment and charter capital of SSIS to be USD7,583,657 and
USD2,500,000, respectively. On 1 July 2013, the Board of Management of the Company resolved
to increase the charter capital of SSIS from USD2,500,000 to USD 12,500,000 by converting the debts
due to the Company to capital in SSIS.

Pursutant to Decision no. 2423/QD-UBND issued by the People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City
on 6 June 2008, the Company was approved to establish another school. Accordingly, Lawrence S.
Ting Secondary and High School (“LSTS™) was established following the Decision no.
3508/BGDDT-KHTC dated 23 April 2008 issued by the Ministry of Education and Training in
Vietnam. Its principal activity is to provide secondary, high school and multi-grade high school
educational services.

17



(iii)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

(a)

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

In the opinion of the management, SSIS and LSTS fail under the definition of entitics controlled by
the Company as stated in Note 3(a)(i) and should be considered as wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, even though SSIS and LSTS do not have their own investment licences but were
established under the investment licence of the Company as one of the approved activities.

On 24 June 2020, the Company completed the transfer of 99.52% and 0.16% equity interests in
Vietinbank Trade-Union Investment Joint Stock Company (“VTU”) to Saigon South Residences Joint
Stock Company (“SSR”) and Phu The Vuong Development Company Limited for the considerations
of VND?318,464 million and YND512 million, respectively. As a result of these transactions, VTU
became a subsidiary indirectly owned by the Company through SSR.

In December 2020, Saigon South Residences Joint Stack Company contributed capital amounting to
VND700 billion to Vietnam Lotus Industrial and Commercial Investment Joint Stock Company. As
a result of this transaction, the economics interest of the Company in Vietnam Lotus Industrial and
Commercial Investment Joint Stock Company, Gia Viet Land Investment Company Limited, VRC
Saigon Real Estate Joint Stock Company were changed.

In July 2019, the Company together with SSR signed the Principal Agreement for Shares Sale and
Purchase with 2 assignees to acquire 0.99% and 99% equity interest of Song Hong Group Joint Stock
Company (“SHG”) for the considerations of VNDI11,318 million and VNDI,131,780 million,
respectively. As per the agreement, 2 assignees assigned all their interests, power and rights relating
to SHG to the Company and SSR; and upon request, 2 assignees shall commit to transfer these shares
to the Company and SSR. In the opinion of the management, SHG fall under the definition of entities
controlled by the Company as stated in Note 3(a}(i) and should be considered as a subsidiary
indirectly owned by the Company through SSR.

On 16 March 2020, the Group completed the acquisition of 89% and 1% of equity interest in Hong
Thinh Trading and Construction Joint Stock Company through its subsidiaries — Saigon South
Residences Joint Stock Company and Hung Khang Development Company Limited for a cash
consideration of VND502,376 million and VND4,624 million, respectively.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group and the Company had 1,712 employees and 873 employees
(1/1/2020: 1,638 employees and 889 employees), respectively.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
the Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable
to financial reporting.
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circnlar No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Cireular No. 202/2014/I'T-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
Basis of measurement

The financial statements, except for the statements of cash flows, are prepared on the accrual basis
using the historical cost concept. ‘The statements of cash flows are prepared using the indirect
method.

Annual accounting period

The Company

The annual accounting period of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December as approved by the
Ministry of Finance in Official Letter no. 15TC/CDKT dated 24 January 1994, revised by Official
Letter no. 448TC/CDKT dated 31 July 1998.

Subsidiaries

The annual accounting periods of the subsidiaries are from | January to 31 December.

Accounting and presentation currency

The Company and its subsidiaries’s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“VND"), which is also
the currency used for financial statements presentation pwpose. The financial statements are
prepared and presented in millions of Vietnam Dong ("VND million™).

Significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Group and the Company in
the preparation of these financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial staterments of the subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases.

Non-contrelling interests

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets at date of acquisition.
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Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as transactions with owners. The difference between the change in the Group’s share of net
assets of the subsidiary and any consideration paid or received is recorded directly in retained profits
under equity.

Jointly controlled entities (equity accounted investees)

Jointly controlled entities are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control,
established by contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and
operating decisions. Jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method (equity
accounted investee). They are initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of
the profit or loss of equity accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint control ceases,
The carrying amount of investments in equity accounted investees is also adjusted for the alterations
in the investor's proportionate interest in the investees arising from changes in the investee's equity
that have not been included in the statements of income (such as revaluation of fixed assets, or foreign
exchange translation differences, etc.).

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying
amount of that interest (including long-term investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made
paymeats on behalf of the investee.

Transactions eliminated on consolidution

Intra-group balances, transactions and any unrealised incomne and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.

Non-common control business combination

Non-common control business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method as at the
acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. Control is the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that currently are
exercisable.

Under the purchase method, the assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are consolidated using
their fair values. Cost of acquisition consists of the aggregate fair value at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group. Goodwill
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired entity. When the excess is
negative, it is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of income.
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Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the
Group incurred in connection with business combinations include any costs directly attributable to
the combination, such as professional fees paid to accountants, legal advisers, valuers and other
consultants to affect the combination. Transaction costs are capitalised into the cost of business
combination. General administrative costs and other costs that cannot be directly attributed to the
patticular combination being accounted for are not included in the cost of the combination; they are
recognised as an expense when incurred.

Common control business combination

Business combination where the same group of shareholders (“the Controlling Shareholders™) control
the combining companies before and after the business combination meets the definition of business
combination under common control because there is a continuation of the risks and benefits to the
Controlling Shareholders. Such common control business combination is specifically excluded from
the scope of Vietnamese Accounting Standard 11 Business Combination and in selecling its
accounting policy with respect to such transaction, the Group has considered Vietnamese Accounting
Standard 01 Framework and Vietnamese Accounting Standard 21 Presentation of Financial
Statements. Based on these standards, the Group has adopted the merger (“carry-over”) basis of
accounting. The assets and liabilities of the combining companies are consolidated using the existing
book values from the Controlling Shateholders’ perspective. Any difference between the cost of
acquisition and net assets acquired is treated as a deemed distribution to or contribution from
shareholders and recorded directly in retained profits under equity.

The consolidated statements of income and consolidated statement of cash flows include the results
of operations of the combining companies as if the group structure had been in existence from the
Controlting Shareholders’ perspective throughout the entire periods presented or where the
companies were incorporated at a date later than the beginning of the earliest period presented, for
the period from the date of incorporation to the end of the relevant seporting periods.

(vii) Acquisition of company that is not business combination

(b)

When the Company acquires an asset or a group of assets (including any labilities assumed) or a
company that does not constitute a business, the transaction is accounted for as asset acquisition in
which the cost of acquisition is allocated between the individual identifiable assets and liabilities in
the group based on their relative fair value at the date of acquisition.

Toreigh currency {ransactions

Transactions in currencies other than VND during the year have been translated into VND at rates
approximating actual rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND at
the account transfer buying rate and at the account transfer selling rate, respectively, at the end of the
annual accounting period quoted by the commercial bank where the Group most frequently conducts
transactions.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the statements of income.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash balances and cail deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting shori-term cash commitinents rather than
for investment or other purposes. For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents are presented net of bank overdraft and pledged deposits.

Investments

Held-to-maturily investinents

Held-to-maturity investments are those that the Company’s o its subsidiaries’ management has the
intention and ability to hold until maturity. Held-to-maturity investments include term deposits with
maturity periods greater than 3 months placed with banks.

Investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled enfities

For the purpose of the separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities are initially recognised at cost which includes purchase price plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are stated at cost less
allowance for diminution in value. An allowance is made for diminution in investment value if the
investee has suffered a loss, except where such a loss was anticipated by the Company's management
before making the investment,  The allowance is reversed if the investee subsequently made a profit
that offsets the previous loss for which the allowance had been made. An allowance is reversed
only to the extent that the investment’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined if no allowance had been recognised.

Investments in equily instruments of othier enfities

Tnvestments in equity instruments of other entities are initially recognised at cost which include
purchase price plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these investments are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in value. An allowance is made
for diminution in investment values if the investee has suffered a loss, except where such a loss was
anticipated by the Company’s management before making the investment. The allowance is
reversed if the investee subsequently made a profit that offsets the previous loss for which the
allowance had been made. An allowance is reversed only to the extent that the investment’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no
allowance had been recognised.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable from customers and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
doubtful debts,
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
direct selling expenses.

Cost is determined based on the specific identification principle and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

Cost in the case of completed properties and work-in-progress consists of the value of land use rights,
land and infrastructure development costs and construction costs.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible
fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and
any directly atiributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such as
repair, maintenance and overhaul cost, is charged to the statements of income in the year in which
the cost is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of tangible
fixed assets beyond their originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed
assets, The estimated useful lives are as follows:

*  buildings 15 — 40 years
= leasehold improvements 5-20 years
*  fixtures and fittings 5-15 years
»  plant and equipment 4 7 years
* motor vehicles 5-77 years
»  other equipment 5- 10 years

Intangible fixed assets

Cost of acquiring new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised
and treated as an intangible fixed asset. Software cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over 3 to
5 years.,
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Investment property

Cost

Investment property held to earn rental is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost
of an investment property held to earn rental comprises its cost of construction, cost of land use rights
and any directly attributable expenditure of bringing the property to the condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Expenditure incurred after the
investment property held to earn rental has been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is charged to the statements of income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. In sitvations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resuited in future economic benefits in
excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing investment property held to
earn rental, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the investment property.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful fives of investment
property. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

*  buildings 25 — 40 years
»  improvement expenditure 5 years

Reclussification to/from investient property

Transfers are made 1o or from investment property only when there is a change in use. Fora transfer
to or from investment property, the deemed cost for the subsequent accounting is the carrying amount
of the property up to the date of change in use.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the costs of investment property under construction, costs of self-
developed mobile application or software which have not been fully completed or installed, the cost
of fixed assets in progress of purchasing and installation. No depreciation is provided for construction
in progress during the period of construction and installation.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include assets held for use by the Group and the Company in the normal
course of business whose costs of individual items are less than VND30 million and therefore not
qualified for recognition as fixed assets under prevailing regulation. Cost of those assets are amortised
on a straight-line basis over a period ranging from 2 to 3 years,

Accounts payable

Accounts payable to suppliers and other payables are stated at their cost.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group and the Company have a present
legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Severance allowance

Provision for severance allowance to be paid to the existing eligible employees as of 31 December
2020 has been made based on the eligible employees’ years of service, being the total employees’
years of service less the number of years for which the employees participated in and contributed to
unemployment insurance in accordance with prevailing laws and regulations and their average salary
for the six-month period prior to the end of the annual accounting period.

Bonds issued

Straight bonds

At initial recognition, straight bonds are measured at cost which comprises proceed from issuance net
of issuance costs. Any discount, premium or issuance costs are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the bond.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the statements of income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at
the end of the annual accounting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the annual accounting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will

be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised, Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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Revenue and other income

Sales of property

Revenue from the sales of standard-design apartments, houses and piece of lands which do not require
significant customisation for each buyer is recognised in the statements of income when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is
recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due. The
iransfer of significant risks and rewards is determined to be at the time of completion of construction
of property; and handover of the property to the buyer or upon full collection of sales proceed in
accordance with the Sale and Purchase contract entered into between the Company and the buyer,
whichever is earlier.

Lease of property

Revenue from the lease of property is recognised in the statements of income on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total
income.

Services rendered

Revenue from sevvices rendered is recognised in the statements of income in proportion to the stage
of completion of the transaction. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to work
performed. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the rights to receive dividend is established. Dividends received
which are attributable to the period before investment acquisition date are deducted from the carrying
amount of the investment.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal outstanding
and the applicable interest rate.

Lease payment

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statements of income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are an integral parl of the total lease
expense.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except where
the borrowing costs relate to borrowings in respect of the construction of qualifying assets, in which
case the borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction are capitalised as part of the cost
of the assets concerned.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group or the Company if one party has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions, or where the Group or the Company and the other party are subject
to comimon control or significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities
and include close family members of any individual considered to be a related party.

Related companies refer to the investors and their ultimate parent companies and their subsidiaries
and associates.

Comparative information

Comparative information in these financial statements is presented as corresponding figures. Under
this method, comparative information for the prior year are included as an integral part of the current
year financial statements and are intended to be read only in relation to the amounts and other
disclosures relating to the current year. Accordingly, the comparative information included in these
financial statements is not intended to present the Group’s or the Company’s financial position,
results of aperations or cash flows for the prior year.
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Acquisition of company that was not a business combination

Hong Thinh Trading and Construction Joint Stock Company

On 16 March 2020, Saigon South Residences Joint Stock Company together with Hung Khang
Development Company Limited completed the acquisition of 89% and 1% equily interest in Hong
Thinh Trading and Construction Joint Stock Company for the cash considerations of VND502,376
million and VND4,624 million, respectively.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities on acquisition date:

Pre-acquisition Fair value Recognised value
carrying amounts adjustments on acquisition
VYND million VND millien VND million
Cash 14 - 14
Inventories 162,504 642,796 805,300
Other current assets 1,438 - 1,438
Current Habilities (4,092) - (4,092)
Deferred tax liabilities - (128,559) (128,559)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 159,864 514,237 674,101
Net assets acquired 507,000
Consideration paid 507,000
Deposit in prior year (475,000)
Cash acquired 14
Net cash outflow 31,980

On 18 January 2021, Saigon South Residences Joint Stock Company together with Hung Khang
Development Company Limited and Hung Khai Development Company Limited completed the
acquisition of remaining 10% equity interest in Hong Thinh Trading and Construction Joint Stock
Company for a cash consideration of YND166,868 million.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/172020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020

VYND million VYND million VND million VND million

Cash on hand 2,820 2,612 2,372 2,098

Cash at banks 638,622 959,531 292,009 590,738

Cash equivalents 5,838,911 4,393,115 2,740,299 2,480,892

Cash and cash equivalents 6,480,353 5,355,258 3,034,680 3,073,728

Less:

Cash and cash equivalents pledged

with banks (55,018) (39,501) (40,674) (11,774)
Cash and cash equivalents in the 6425335 5315757  2,994006 3,061,054

statements of cash flows

As of 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents of the Group and the Company amounting to
VYNDS355,018 million and VND40,674 million (1/1/2020: VND39,501 million and VNDI11,774
million), respectively, were pledged with banks as security for loans granted to the Group and the
Company.

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2020 included the maintenance funds amounting to
VIND943,703 million and VND778,845 million (1/1/2020: VND905,763 million and YND792,605
million} that the Group and the Company collected on behalf of the management committees of
residential prajects, which will be handed over to the committees when they have been established.
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Invesitments

Held-to-maturity investments

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VND million VND million VND million VND million

Held-to-maturity investments include:
» term deposits with maturity period

greater than 3 months pledged with

banks as security for loans 91,648 19,200 69,500 14,500
» term deposits with maturity period

greater than 3 months pledged with

banks as security for cther purposes 5,900 5,600 5,000 5,000

» term deposits with maturity period
greater than 3 months 756,971 275,571 146,151 62,321
854,519 300,371 220,651 81,821

Held-to-maturity investments as at 31 December 2020 included the maintenance funds amounting fo
VND191,094 million and VND106,094 million (1/1/2020: VND55,439 million and YND35,439
million) that the Group and the Company collected on behalf of the management comnittees of
residential projects, which will be handed over to the committees when they have been established,
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiarvies
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Movements in the allowance for diminution in value of long-term financial investments during the
year were as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million VND million VND million VND million
Opening balance 64,251 46,449 181,519 163,717
Addition 38,289 17,802 38,289 17,802
Closing balance 102,540 64,251 219,808 181,519

Accounts receivable from customers

As of 31 December 2020, no accounts receivable from customers (1/1/2020: VNDS5,624 million) were
pledged with banks as security for long-term loans granted to the Group and the Company.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year were as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million VND millien VND million VND million
Opening balance 20,489 20,149 19,314 18,454
Increase in allowance during the year T 1,995 310 1,110
Written back (1,038) (1,655) (562) (250)
Closing balance 20,228 20,489 19,062 19,314
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/JHN
(Issued under Circular No, 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Loans receivable

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020

VND million VND million YND million VND million

Unsecured loans
Loans receivable from third parties - 3,200 - -
Loans receivable from employees (i) 382,185 367,985 - -
Loans receivable from a third party (ii) 15,000 - - -
Secured loans
Loans receivable from an individual (iii) 880,000 - - -
Loans receivable from a third party (iv) 36,360 - - -
Loans receivable from a third party (v) 73,298 21,200 - -
1,386,843 392,385 - -
Short-term 968,298 362,385 - -
Long-term 418,545 - - -

These loans were for operational activities and earned interest from 5.20% to 6.80% (2019: from
6.80% to 7.00%) per annurn.

These loans earned interest from 5.30% to 6.00% per annum.

These loans were secured by 100% equity interest in Song Hong Landhouse Real Estate Joint Stock
Company and earned interest from 5.30% to 6.00% per annum.

These loans were secured by 100% equity interest of Vu Thinh Hoa Binh Development Company
Limited and earned interest at 5.30% per annun.

These loans were secured by 80% equity interest of Viet Uc Online Service Joint Stock Company
and earned interest from 5.30% to 5.80% (2019: 7.00%) per annum.

All the above loans will be due in 2021 and 2022.
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(b)

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

: Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circidar No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Other recetvables

Other short-term receivables

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VND million VND miltion VND million VND million

Receivables from subsidiaries - 2,710,376 1,876,246

Interest receivables 120,072 37427 59,211 48,750
Dividend receivables 43435 - 43,435 -
Land use right fee receivables 583 583 583 583
Short-term deposits 251,577 498.470 11,629 11,536
Advances 331,603 260,181 281,840 236,974
Payment on behalf 2,193 7,101 34,119 37,650
QOthers 118,749 101,546 79,498 59,137

868,212 905,308 3,220,691 2,270,876

The non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries amounting to VND2,396,000 million (1/1/2020:
VND1,542,421 million) were unsecured, earned interest from 5.20% to 7.00% (2019: 6.15% to
7.00%) per annum and repayable in 2021.

The remaining non-irade amounts due from subsidiaries were unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand.

Other long-term receivables

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020

VND milliorn ' VND millisn VND million VND million

Long-term deposits 79,681 73,536 493 566
Loans receivable from subsidiaries - - 1,967,000 29,500
79,681 73,536 1,967,493 30,066

Long-term deposits represented deposits placed with banks, as per instructions from authorities, to
implement the projects. These deposits earned interest from 4.30% to 6.00% (2019: 4.30% to 7.50%)

per annum.

Loan receivables from subsidiaries were unsecured, eamned interest rate from 6.50% to 7.00% (2019:
6.80% to 7.00%) per annum and repayable in 2022 and 2023,
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10.

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DIN/JHN

(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Inventories

Group

Raw materials

Work in progress
Completed propertics
Tools and supplies
Merchandise inventories

Company

Raw materials

Work in progress
Completed properties
Tools and supplies
Merchandise inventories

31/12/2020 1/1/2020
Cost Allowance Cost Allowance
VND million VND million VND million VND million
3,753 - 3,753 -
13,105,170 - 12,093,037 -
1,010,903 (415,665) 1,799,472 (376,463)
7,403 (6,900) 7,403 (6,900)
93 - 85 -
14,127,322 (422,565) 13,903,750 (383,363)
31/12/2020 1/1/2020
Cost Allowance Cost Allowance
VND million VND million VND million VND million
3,069 - 3,009 -
5,007,316 - 5,512,239 -
206,494 (375,368) 499,577 (376,463)
7,403 {6,900) 7,403 (6,900)
93 - 86 -
5,824,375 (382,268) 6,022,374 (383,363)
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/FT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance})

Certain inventories of the Group and the Company were pledged with banks as security for the loans
granted and bonds issued as follows:

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VND million VND million VND million VND million

Carrying value of inventories 3,275,446 4,769,338 1,184,821 1,546,984

During the year, borrowing costs capitalised in inventories amounted to VYND104,746 million and
VND17,886 million (2019: VND201,758 million and VND16,082 million) for the Group and the
Company, respectively.

Movements in the allowance for inventories during the year were as follows:

Group Company
2020 2619 2020 2019
VND million VND million VND million VND million
Opening balance 383,363 378,099 383,363 378,009
Increase in allowance during the year 41,536 7.063 1,239 7,063
Allowance reversed during the year (2,334) {1,799 (2,334) {1,799)
Closing balance 422,565 383,363 382,268 383,363

As of 31 December 2020, allowance for inventories amounting to VND415,659 million (1/1/2020:
VND376,463 million) were for carparks which could not be sold in recent years.
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12,

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issied under Circular No. 20072014/TT-BTC and Circular No, 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Intangible fixed assets

Software
Cost

Opening balance

Additions

Transfer from construction in progress
Disposals

Closing balance

Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Disposals

Closing balance

Net book value

Opening balance
Closing balance

Group

2020

2019

Company

2020

2019

VND million VND million VND million VND million

46,550 37,038 28,269 25,426
2,032 10,509 1,597 4,364
882 524 74 -
(1,198) (1,521) (1,198) (1,521)
48,266 46,550 28,742 28,269
29,817 26,643 18,648 16,822
6,601 4,695 3,662 3,347
(970) (1,521) (970} (1,521)
35,448 29,817 21,340 18,648
16,733 10,395 9,621 8,604
12,818 16,733 7402 9,621

Included in the cost of intangible fixed assets were assets costing VND 16,703 million and VNDG6,153
million (1/1/2020: VND 14,504 million and VNDS, 1 14 million) of the Group and of the Company, which
were fully amortised as of 31 December 2020, but are still in active use.
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13.

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
{Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Cirenlar No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 Decentber 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Investment properties

Buildings and improvement expenditure Group/Company
VND million

Cost

Opening balance 6,510,345
Addition 207,343
Transfer from construction in progress 37,242
Transfer to tangible fixed assets (13,358)
Closing balance _ 6,741,572

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance 1,540,821
Charge for the year 232,914
Transfer to tangible fixed assets (4,219)
Closing balance 1,769,516

Net ook value

Opening balance 4,969,524
Closing balance 4,972,056

Investment properties comprise a number of commercial and residential properties and land located at
Phu My Hung development area that are leased/intended for lease to third parties. No contingent rents
are charged.

As of 31 December 2020, investment properties with a carrying value of YND3,376,265 million

(1/1/2020: YND2,128,066 miilion) were pledged with banks as security for long-term loans granted to
the Group and the Company.
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14.

15.

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No, 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Construction in progress

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

VND million VND million VND million VYND million
Opening balance 69,993 430,199 40,320 424,620
Additions 195,881 950,152 110,544 933,657
Transfer to tangible fixed assets (65,673) (1,654) (2,038) (1,654)
Transfer to intangible fixed assets (882) (524) (74) -
Transfer to investment properties (37,242)  (1,307,303) (37,242  (1,307,303)
Transfer to long-term prepaid expenses (1,935) (877) - -
Closing balance 160,142 69,993 120,510 49,320

During the year, borrowing costs capitalised in construction in progress amounted to VND77 million
{2019; VND16,780 million} for the Group and the Company.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

VND million VND million VND million VND million

Opening balance 18,315 20,891 3,426 4211
Additions 7,478 9,160 3,852 568
Transfer from construction in progress 1,935 877 - -
Ammortisation for the year (10,423) (12,613) (1,341) (1,353)
Closing balance 17,305 18,315 5,937 3,426
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16.
(a)

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
Tax rate VND million VND million VND million VND million

Deferred tax assets

Accruals and provisions 20% 235,638 275,819 162,956 168,388

Tax losses 20% 14,723 6,582 - -

Net interest expense

exceeding cap 20% 998 - - -

Unrealised profits on

intercompany transactions 20% 528,524 707,454 - -
Total deferred tax assets 779,883 989,855 162,956 168,388

Deferred tax liabilities
Revaluation gain of net
assets of subsidiaries on

acquisitions 20% 470,052 337,034 - -
Unrealised profits 20% 6 95 - -
Total deferred tax liabilities 470,058 337,129 - -
Net deferred tax assets 309,825 652,726 162,956 168,388

Movements of the deferred tax — net during the year were as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million  VND million VYND million VND million
Opening balance 652,726 1,156,678 168,388 176,424
Recognised in statements of income (209,883} (239,236) (5,432) {8,036)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (133,018) (264,716) - -
Closing balance 309,825 652,726 162,956 168,388
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(b)

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

TForm B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Cirenlar No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 Decentber 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Net interest expense exceeding cap expire in 2024 and 2025. The tax losses of the subsidiaries expire in
the following years:

Tax losses
Year of expiry Status of tax review available
VND million
2021 Outstanding 44
2022 Qutstanding 1,951
2023 Outstanding 10,552
2024 Cutstanding 23,625
2025 Outstanding 37,442
73,614
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the tax losses:
Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2028 31/12/2020 1/1/2020

VND million VNDmillion VND million  VND million

Tax losses 81 81 - -

The tax losses of the subsidiaries expire in the following years:

Tax losses
Year of expiry Status of tax review available
VND million
2021 Outstanding 94
2022 Qutstanding 308
2023 Qutstanding 4
406

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the tax losses because it is not probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Yorm B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

17. Accounts payable to suppliers
(a) Accounts payable to suppliers detailed by significant suppliers
Group
31/12/2020 1/1/2020
Amount within Amount within
Cost payment capacity Cost payment capacity
YND million VND million YND million VYND million
Supplier 1 240,273 240,273 208,662 208,662
Supplier 2 211,863 211,863 182,312 182,312
Supplier 3 106,338 106,338 121,128 121,128
Other suppliers 497,161 497,161 395,901 395,901
1,055,635 1,055,635 908,003 908,003
Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020
Amount within Amount within
Cost payment capacity Cost payment capacity
VYND million VND million VND million VYND million
Supplier 1 106,338 106,338 121,128 121,128
Supplier 2 63,539 63,539 - -
Supplier 3 35,995 35,995 53,259 53,259
Other suppliers 206,470 206,470 193,136 193,136
412,342 412,342 367,523 367,523

(b) Accounts payable to suppliers who are related parties

Group

Related companies

31/12/2020 1/1/2020
Amount within Amount within
Cost payment capacity Cost payment capacity
VND million VND million YND million YND million
80,233 80,233 67,663 67,663
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18.

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Cireular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2620
Amount within Amout within
Cost payment capacity Cost payment capacity
VND million YND million VND million VYND million
Related companies 79,477 79,477 62,149 62,149

Trade related amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest free and payable within the given
credit period from invoice date.

Advances from customers

Advances from customers represented deposits and progress payments from customers for purchase of
apariments/houses. These advances will be recognised into revenue when significant risks and rewards
of the apartment/house have been transferred to the buyers.
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20.

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

- Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issied under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Taxes receivable from State Treasury

Group
Acquisition of
1/1/2020  Incurred  subsidiary Net off  Reclassify  31/12/2020
VND million VND million VND million VND million VND million YND million
Deductible
value added tax 33,747 394,002 1,438 (334,609) - 04,608
Corporate
income tax (*) 60,883 964 - (8,204) 124 53,767
Others 6 224 - 5 - 225
60,889 1,188 - (8,209) 124 53,992
Company
1/1/2020 Incurred Net off 31/12/2020
VND million VND million VND million VND million
Deduclible value added tax - 175,157 (168,289) 6,368
Corporate income tax (*) 7,557 - (2,319) 5,238
Others 1 216 - 217

7,558 216 (2,319 5,455

Corporate income tax represented provisional income tax paid in advance by the Group and the
Company on the progress payments collected from apartment/house buyers as at year-end.

Accrued expenses

Group Company
31/12/2020 /172020 31/12/2020  1/1/2020

VND million VND million VND million VND million

Land transfer costs 2,915 2,915 2,915. 2,915
Interest payables 23,579 22,137 20,404 14,203
Construction costs 336,667 689,816 168,700 348,805
Others 15,961 28,305 6,983 15,386

379,122 743,173 199,008 381,309

50




21.
(a)
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)

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
{Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Other payables
Other payables — short-lerm
Group Company

31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VYND million VND million YND million YND million

Deposits received 130,383 130,209 100,994 113,625
Bonus payables 121,515 113,467 121,515 113,467
Management fees and maintenance fund (*) 1,164,383 1,014,287 900,543 856,176
Social and health insurance 1,272 823 668 668
Dividend payables 191,500 1,073,340 - 1,073,340
Payables to related companies 573 - 2,830 14,892
Payables to acquire a subsidiary 425,863 430,863 - -
Others 101,010 66,507 38,329 46,189

2,136,499 2,829,496 1,164,879 2,218,357

Management fees and maintenance funds are money collected on behalf of inanagement committee of
residential projects which will be handed over to the committee when they have been established.

Other payables representing amounts due to related parties

Grouy Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020

VND million VND million VYND million VND million

Amounts due to the parent company 4,403 751,338 573 751,338
Amounts due to the local investor - 322,002 - 322,002

Non-trade amounts due to the parent company and local investor were unsecured, interest free and
payable on demand.
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(a)

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN

(Issued under Cireular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Cireular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Borrowings and bonds

Short-term borrowings

Group

Secured short-term
borrowings
Unsecured short-term
borrowings

Current portion of
long-term borrowings
(Note 22(b))

Conipany

Secured short-icrm
borrowings
Unsecured shorl-term
horrowings

Current portion of
long-term borrowings
(Note 22(b))

Movements during

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finarce)

1712020 the year 31/12/2020
Amount Amount
within within
Carrying repayment Carrying repayment
amouint capacity Addition Repayment amount capacity
VND VND VND VND VYND VND
million million million million million million
2023016 2,023,016 1905617 (3,219,398) 709,235 709,235
268,843 268,843 2,279,713 (986,660) 1,561,896 1,561,896
2,291,859 2,291,859 4,185330 (4,206,058) 2,271,131 2,271,131
858,339 858,339 209,935 (858,339) 209,935 209,935
3,150,198 3,150,198 4,395,265 (5,064,397) 2,481,066 2,481,066
Movements during
1/1/2020 the year 31/12/2020
Amount Amount
within within
Carrying repayment Carrying repayment
amount capacity Addition Repayment amount capacity
VND VND YND VND VYND YND
million million million million million million
1,304,955 1,304,955 1,333,260 ~ (2,126,980) 511,235 511,235
533,100 533,100 1,939,714 (1,249,227) 1,223,587 1,223,587
1,838,055 1,838,055 3,272,974 (3376207) 1,734,822 1,734,822
206,375 206,375 112,018 (206,375) 112,018 112,018
2044430 2,044,430 3,384,992 (3,582,582) 1,846,840 1 ,346,840
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Cirenlar No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Terms and conditions of outstanding short-term borrowings weie as follows:

Group Company
Annual interest rate 31/12/2020  1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020

Currency 2020 2019 VND million YND million VND million VND million

Loan 1 YND - 6.30% - 6.80% - 21,000 - 21,000
Loan 2 VYND  3.75% - 6.00% 7% 170,000 139,000 170,000 139,000
Loan 3 USD 1.77%-1.86% 3.22% -4.24% 139,290 162,610 139,250 162,610
Loan4 VYND - 5.80% -7.47% - 36,234 - 36,234
Loan 5 VND - 8.00% - 279,017 - -
Loan 6 USD - 4.89% - 5.71% - 232,300 - -
Loan7 UsSb - 3.15% - 4.00% - 69,690 - 69,690
Loan8 VYND 1.87%-2.19% 6.30% -7.20% 129,200 24,344 129,200 24,344
Loan 9 VND  5.15%-542% - 19,420 - 19,420 -
Loan 10(a) USD 1.92%-194% 3.86%-431% 162,505 325,220 162,505 325,220
Loan 10(b) VND 3.08%-3.50% 5.66% -5.95% 22,000 3,488 22,000 3,488
Toan 11(a) USD 2.01%-234% 3.92% -4.65% 185,720 232,300 185,720 232,300
Loan 11(b) VND 4.58%-5.45% 6.55% -6.73% 1,720 587 1,720 587
Loan 12 UsD _ - 2,98% - 3.54% - 116,150 - 116,150
Loan 13 UsD - 3.70% - 4.33% - 394,950 - 394,910
Loan 14 (a) USD 1.64% -2.22% - 754,488 - 754,488 -
Loan 14 (b) VND - 6.12%-6.21% - 48,265 - 48,265
Loan 15 VND - 3.58% - 4.82% - 103,375 - -
Loan 16 VND - 3.58% -5.717% - 103,369 - -
Loan 17 VND - 7% - - - 264,257
Loan 18 VND 2.88% -4.36% - 92,440 - 92,441 -
Loan 19 ush 1.97% - 58,038 - 58,038 -
Loan 20 VYND  5.30% - 5.80% - 338,310 - - -
Loan 21 VND 4.25% - 198,000 - - -
2,271,131 2,291,859 },734,822 1,838,055
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(iv)

(b)

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

As of 31 December 2020 and | January 2020, short-term borrowings of the Group and the Company
were secured by the collaterals as detailed in Note 22(b):

a. Loan 10(a) and 10(b) was secured by the same collaterals with long-term Joan 5;

b. Loan 11(a) and 11({b) was secured by the same collaterals with long-term loan 4;

As of 31 December 2020, loan 3 was secured by inventories with carrying amount of VND15,551
million (1/1/2020; VND16,172 million).

As of 1 January 2020, loan 7 was secured by investment properties with carrying amount of
VYND257,071 milfion,

As of 31 December 2020, loan 21 was secured by inventories with carrying amount of VND229,776
miltion (1/1/2020: nil).

Long-term borrowings and bonds

Group Company
31/12/2020 1172020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VND million  VND million VND million  VND million
Long-term borrowings (i) 1,684,853 1,852,502 651,218 725,523
Long-term bonds (ii) 5,547,128 1,077,115 5,547,128 1,077,115
7,231,981 2,929,617 6,198,346 1,802,638
Repayable within twelve
months (Note 22(a)) (209,935) (858,339) (112,018) (206,375)
Repayable after twelve months 7,022,046 2,071,278 6,086,328 1,596,263
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Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No, 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

(i)  Long-term borrowings

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VND million  VND million  VND million  VND million
Foan 1 - 192,400 - 192,400
Loan 2 - 369,863 - -
Loan 3 (98,762 235,744 - -
Loan 4 196,881 268,166 - -
Loan 5 513,418 533,123 513,418 533,123
Yoan 6 - 210,816 - -
Loan 7 137,992 42,390 - -
Loan 8 9,199 - 9,199 -
Loan 9 128,601 - 128,601 -
1,684,853 1,852,502 651,218 725,523

(i) Long-term bonds

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VND million VYND million VYND million VYND million
Bond 1 299,201 299,121 299,201 209,121
Bond 2 3,404,047 777,994 3,404,047 711,994
Bond 3 1,843,880 - 1,843,880 -
5,547,128 1,077,113 5,547,128 1,077,115
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23.

24.

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
{Issued under Cireunlar No. 20072014/TT-BTC and Circilar No, 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Provisions for severance allowance

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million VND million VND million YND million
Opening balance 36,923 30,413 36,923 30,413
Provision made during the year 3,800 9,927 3,800 9,927
Utilised during the year (1,105) (3417 (1,105) 3417)
Closing balance 39,618 36,923 39,618 36,923
Provisions
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million VYND million VND million VND million
Opening balance 513,584 558,737 526,255 582,515
Provision made during the year:
= Cumulative areas sold 7,047 15,007 3,006 3,990

» Cumulative areas transferred to
tangible fixed assets and

investment properties 587 2,297 587 2,297
Written back/utilised during the year (10,362) (62,547) (10,363) (62,547)
Closing balance 510,856 513,584 519,485 526,255

In accordance with the project master plan approved by the authority on the 600 hectares of land in
Saigon South area, the Company has the obligation to complete the common infrastructure works on
the designated areas, including land levelling, landscaping, road and parkway construction and power
and water supply, together referred to as “land development costs ("LDC")”. The provision for LDC
mainly relates to estimated LDC on cumulative areas sold and completed from the inception of the
project till the reporting date.

The provision is based on the best estimates of the management derived from historical data associated
with similar infrastructure works as well as current market price.
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26.

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Cireular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Cireular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Company

Contributed Financial Retained

capital reserve profits Total

VND million VND million VND million VND million
Balance as of 1 January 2019 954,000 36,859 12,230,716 13,221,575
Net profit for the year - - 995,406 995,406
Dividends (Note 27) - - (1,450,008) (1.450,008)
Balance as of 1 January 2020 954,000 36,859 11,776,114 12,766,973
Net profit for the year - - 1,219,133 1,219,133
Dividends (Note 27) - - (1,522,661) (1,522,661)
Balance as of 31 December 2020 954,000 36,859 11,472,586 12,463,445

Contributed capital

The Company's authorised and contributed capital are:

Authorised Contributed
USD % USD VND .lllllll()ll %
equivalent

Phu My Hung Asia Holdings
Corporation 42,000,000 70% 42,000,000 667,800 70%
Tan Thuan Industrial Promotion
Co,, Ltd ("IPC") 18,000,000 30% 18,000,000 286,200 30%

60,000,600 100% 60,000,000 954,000 100%

Phu My Hung Asia Holdings Corporation is incorporated in Cayman Islands.

The capital contribution of IPC is in the form of 600 hectares of land use rights at Saigon South area
for 50 years at an agreed value of VND477 million (USD30,000) per hectare.

IPC has transferred the land use rights certificate for the 600 hectares of land to the Company.
However, 282.43 hectares of land has not been cleared and as a result, has not been effectively
contributed as capital according to the charter. On 8 April 2016, the charter of the Company has
been amended following an amendment to the joint venture agreement between the investors. The
amendment recognised that IPC has fully contributed its remaining capital of the Charter Capital to
the Company. The amendment has effectively relieved IPC of the requirement to clear this land and
as a result, its obligations in the contribution of capital has been completed as of that date.
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28.

29.
(a)

(b)

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Dividends

On 31 March 2020, the Members® Council of the Company resolved to distribute dividends amounting
to VND1,522,661 million out of part of the net profit of 2016 (2019: VND1,450,008 million out of
net profits of 2015 and part of the net profit of 2016).

Financial reserve

Prior to 1 July 2000, the Law on Foreign Investment in Vietnam required foreign invested joint venture
companies to allocate 5% of their profit after tax for the year toa non-distributable legal reserve which
should not exceed 10% of the Company’s legal capital. This requirement was abolished from 1 July
2000. The Ministry of Finance has permitted enterprises to either maintain this reserve or transfer it
to distributable earnings. The Company has elected to continue to maintain this reserve. The
reserve is fully distributable.

Off balance sheet items

Leases
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were:
Group

31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VND million  VND million

Within one year 3,988 2,765
Within two to five years 11,711 12,655
More than five years 47,813 44,564

63,512 59,984

Foreign currency

Included in the cash and cash equivalents at the end of the annual accounting period are amounts
denominated in a currency other than VND amounting to:

31/12/2020 1/1/2020
Original YND million Original VND miillion
currency equivalent currency equivalent
Group
usoD 6,237,114 143,672 2,134,236 49,322
Company
uUsD 690,441 15,904 30,997 716
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30.

Phu My Hung Development Corporation and its subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
{Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC and Circtilar No, 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Capital expenditure

At the end of the annual accounting period, the Group and the Company had the following outstanding
capital commitments approved but not provided for in the balance sheets:

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VYND million VND million VND million VND million

Approved and contracted 796,921 600,287 153,397 153,397

Construction contracts

At the end of the annual accounting period, the Group and the Company had the following outstanding
construction contracts contracted but not provided for in the balance sheets:

Group Company
31/12/2020 1/1/2020 31/12/2020 1/1/2020
VND million VND million VND million VND million

Approved and contracted 3,549,952 3,901,998 1,634,678 1,890,023

Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million VND million VND million VND million

Total revenue

»  Sales of property 7,195,014 8,632,758 1,886,030 1,508,088

= Lease of property 1,019,921 918,976 1,022,411 920,322

= Services rendered 1,115,630 992,726 397,049 493,675

9,330,565 10,544,460 3,305,490 2,922,085

Less revenue deductions

= Sales returns {12,462) (935) (4,402) (935)

= Sales discounts (87,287) (35,262) (25,585) -
(99,749) (36,197) (29,987 (935)

Net revenue 9,230,816 10,508,263 3,275,503 2,921,150
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Cost of sales

Total cost of sales
»  Sales of property
= Lease of property
x  Services rendered

Financial income

Interest income
Dividend income
Foreign exchange gains
Others

Financial expenses

Interest expense
Foreign exchange losses

Allowance for diminution in value of

investments
Others

Group

2020

2019

Company
2020 2019

VND million VND million VND million VND million

2,991,273 4,148,442 819,771 338,365
534,397 462,131 534,182 462,030
639,895 519,499 273,482 306,738

4,165,565 5,130,072 1,627,435 1,107,133

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million VND million VND million VND million
262,816 178,037 219,502 200,174
- - 398,514 29,818
35,391 9,321 33,371 8,098
5 2,575 5 2,575
208,212 189,933 651,392 240,665
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million VND million VND million VYND million
261,504 195,806 249,768 162,580
25,525 6,874 24,084 5,165
38,289 17,802 38,289 17,802
08,576 37,195 39,358 10,155
393,894 257,677 351,499 195,702
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Other income

Graup Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

VND million VND million VND million VND million

Gains on d?sposals of tanglb]c? fixed 234 2427 234 2,062
assets and investment properties

Penalty and deposit forfeited 57,370 16,733 33,965 7,504

Income from toll operations 10,780 80 10,730 80

Others 20,543 29,082 9,291 13,659

88,927 48,322 54,270 23,305

Other expenses

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

VYND million VND million VND million VND million

Investment properties and fixed assets

disposals 820 526 ' 720 486
Others 23,750 18,655 9,271 4,695
24,570 19,181 9,991 5,181
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Income tax

Recognised in the statements of income

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
VND million YND million VND million VND mitlion
Current tax expense
Current year 503,136 591,880 185,831 222,960
{Over)/Under provision in prior years (1,916) 340 5,722 (414)
501,220 592,720 191,553 222,546
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 220,543 243,258 6,981 8,329
Over provision in prior years (1,729 (293) (1,549) (293)
Benefit of net interest expenses
exceeding cap recognised {998) - - -
Tax losses recoghised {7,933) (3,729 - -
209,883 239,236 5432 8,036
Income tax expense 711,103 831,956 196,985 230,582
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
YND VND VYND VYND
million million million million
Accounting profit before tax 4,005,233 4,310,557 1,416,118 1,225,988
Tax at statutory corporate income tax rat 301,046 862,111 283,223 245,198
Effect of different tax rate applied for
activities as stated in the investinent
licence (32,811) (29,680) (22,095) (14,925)
Tax exempt income (3,781) (9,102) {80,026) (5,980)
Non-deductible expenses 14,521 8,755 11,710 6,996
Changes in unrecognised deferred tax asset (60,75%) (675) - -
{Over)/Under provision in prior years (3,645) 547 4,173 (707)
Income tax reduction for certain - -
subsidiaries (*) (3,468) -

711,103 831,956 196,985 230,582
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Pursuant to Decree No.114/2020/ND-CP dated 25 September 2020, enterprises whose revenue in the
tax period of 2020 does not exceed VND200 billion, are entitled to 30% reduction of income tax
payable for 2020.

Applicable tax rates

Under the terms of the revised Investment Licence No. 602/GPDCS, the Company, SSIS and LSTS
have an obligation to pay the government income tax at the rate of 10% of taxable profits for leasing,
golf, recreational and educational services and at the rate applicable to enterprises before any
incentives for sales of property.

No incentive was granted for income derived from sales of property.

The usual income tax rate applicable to enterprises before any incentives is 20%.

The Company

The provisions of the Company’s initial investment licence allow the Company to be exempted from
income tax for 4 years from the first profitable year (2006) and receive a 50% reduction in income tax
for the 4 succeeding years (2010 to 2013) for leasing, golf and recreational activities.

Other subsidiaries

Other than SSIS and LSTS’s applicable tax rates as guided in Investment License No. 602/GPDCS,
other subsidiarics have obligation to pay the government income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable
profits.

Non-cash investing activities

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

VYND million VND million VND million YND million

Conversion of interest receivables to

equity investment - 55,735 - 11,318
Conversion of loans receivables to equity
investment - 650,000 - 250,000
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Significant transactions with related parties

In addition to related party balances disclosed in other notes to these financial statements, the Group
and the Company had the following significant transactions with related parties:

Group Company
Transaction value Transaction value
2020 2019 2020 2019

VND million VND million VND million VND million

Related companies
Tan Thuan Corporation

Services rendered 1,500 1,636 1,500 1,636
Other setrvice income 778 308 08 34
Others 228 436 228 436
Macro Technologies Inc (Vietnam)

Limited

Management and design fees 13,853 10,148 4,732 3,566
Purchase of construction material and

construction services 8,480 8,633 8,480 8,633
Other service income 28 27 28 27

Sino-Pacific Construction
Consultancy Co., Ltd

Management and design fees 28,938 16,397 27,708 6,885
Purchase of construction material and

construction services 257,959 229,193 208,785 227,638
Rental income and other service income 5,534 18,987 4,237 16,869
Tan Phat New Development

Company Limited

Construction services 46,650 19,891 41,409 17,331
Rental income and other service income 3,403 2,217 2,397 2,199
Subsidiaries

Saigon South Residences Joint Stock

Company

Interest income - - 29,190 40,038
Commission income - - 1,165 14,827
Service provided - - - 6,600

Phu Hung Thai Development Joint
Stock Company

Commission income - “ 35,204 264,858
Interest income - - 7,346 50,925
Service provided 168,614 23,246
Dividend - - 355,080 -
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Group Company
Transaction value Transaction vahie
2020 2019 2020 2019

VND million VND million VND million VND million

Vietinbank Trade-Union Investment
Joint Stock Company

Interest income - - 59,572 58,120
Key management personnel
Short-term employee benefits 60,867 55,107 58,323 53,136

39. Post balance sheet event (non-adjusting)

(a) Dividends declared after the year end

On 2 March 2021, the Members’ Council of the Company resolved to distribute dividends amounting
to VND936,000 million out of remaining profits of 2016 and pait of the net profit of 2017. These
dividends payable have not been accrued in these financial statements.

(b)  Acquisitions of equity interests in other entities

On 20 January 2021, Saigon South Residences Joint Stock Company granted a loan amounting to
VND380,000 million to its subsidiary — Hung Khang Development Company Limited; and Hung
Xhang Development Company Limited advanced this loan to an assighee to acquire 100% equity
interest in Phu Minh Development Company Limited for a cash consideration of YND478,000 million.

On 19 February 2021, Saigon South Residences Joint Stock Company completed the acquisition of

35% equity interest, a new investment, in Ruby Business Investment Company Limited for a cash
consideration of VND105,000 million.

40. Comparative information

Comparative information was derived from the balances and amounts reported in the financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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